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PART 1 — BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

1 - Business

(a)

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (hereinafter to be referred to as "Company" or "KPH")
was incorporated in July 1975 under the former name of Keppel Philippines Shipyard, Inc.
The Company was established as a subsidiary of Keppel Corporation Ltd. (KCL) of
Singapore to carry out ship repair and shipbuilding activities in the Philippines. In 1993,
the Company was converted into an investment holding company under the name of
Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. KPH shares are being traded at the Philippine Stock
Exchange (PSE).

Currently, KPH has two core businesses: namely, investment holdings and real estate.

(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

()

The Company is not involved in any bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings.

There is no material reclassification, merger, consolidation, purchase or sale of a
significant amount of assets not in the ordinary course of business.

The Company does not have any patents, trademarks, licenses, franchises, concessions,
and/or royalty agreements.

As an investment holding company, KPH has seven (7) regular employees in 2017 from
five (5) regular employees during the period 2015 to 2016. There is no collective
bargaining agreement between the Company and the employees.

Brief Description of Business

KPH has two main business segments: Investment Holdings and Real Estate. The
contribution from each segment of the businesses to the consolidated revenues and net
income of the Company is stated in Note 16 of the audited financial statements.

Real Estate

The Company owns office space at Fedman Suites, while KPSI Property, Inc. (KPSI), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of KPH, owns and leases out the office spaces in Country Space 1
Building at Makati City. Goodwealth Realty Development Corp. (GRDC), 51% owned
by KPH, owns and leases parcels of land and improvements in Batangas City. Goodsoil
Marine Realty, Inc. (GMRI), wholly owned by GRDC and effectively 51% owned by
KPH, owns and leases the land in Bauan, Batangas to Keppel Philippines Marine Inc.
(KPMI) used for the construction and repair of all types and classes of vessels together with
the related services and operations of a shipyard. GMRI is registered as an Ecozone
Developer/Operator with the Philippine Economic Zone Authority (PEZA) since 2007.
Consort Land, Inc. (CLI)., 25% owned by GMRI and effectively 13% owned by KPH,
owns and leases the land in Subic, Zambales to Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc. (KSSI) used
for the construction and repair of all types and classes of vessels and the fabrication of
offshore marine structures. CLI 1s registered with PEZA as an Ecozone Developer/Operator
of the Subic Shipyard-Special Economic Zone and distribute power to its locators.



2 - Properties

The Company owns the following properties:

Owned by Property Description Area

KPH Two (2) office condominium units at Fedman

Suite in Makati City 166 sqm
KPSI Two (2) office condominium units and five (5)

parking slots at Country Space I Building in

Makati City 345 sqm
GRDC Five (5) lots of residential land in Batangas City 1,500 sgm
GRDC One (1) residential land and improvement in

Batangas City 252 sgqm
GMRI Land located in Bauan, Batangas 249,584 sqm
CLI Land and building located in Subic, Zambales 840.043 sgm

The properties owned by the Company and its subsidiary and associates are free from any lien.
3 - Legal Proceedings

In September 2003, the Company filed a complaint against Philippine National Oil Company
(PNOC) for specific performance with the Regional Trial Court (RTC) in Batangas City for the
enforcement of the contract relating to the option to purchase parcels of land in Batangas.
Judgment was rendered in January 2006 in favor of the Company ordering PNOC to accept the
payment of P4.1 million, which was consigned with the Clerk of Court, as full and complete
payment of the purchase price, and to execute a Deed of Absolute Sale in favor of the
Company. PNOC, however, filed an appeal with the Court of Appeals (CA) but dismissed
appeal on December 19, 2011.

On July 25, 2016, Supreme Court (SC) affirmed the decision of the CA in December 2011 and
the resolution dated May 14, 2012 and upheld the Company’s option to buy the land and
remanded the case to the RTC in Batangas City to update the Company’s Filipino equity
ownership. As at December 14, 2016, SC’s decision became final and executory and was
recorded in the Books of Entries of Judgments. As of January 26, 2018, the Company is still
awaiting on the final resolution of the RTC.

4 - Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the third and fourth quarter
of the fiscal year covered by the report. The last meeting of the Company’s stockholders was
the annual stockholders’ meeting, which was held on 16 June 2017.

PART 11 - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

5- Market Price of and Dividends on Registrant’s Common Equity and Related
Stockholder Matters

(a) Market Information

The principal market of the Company’s common equity is the Philippine Stock Exchange
(PSE) where it was listed on 26 August 1987. The high and low closing prices for each
quarter within the last two (2) fiscal years and first quarter of 2018 as traded at the
Philippine Stock Exchange are as follows:



STOCK
PRICES 2017 2016
High Low High Low
First Quarter ‘A’ B5.59 ‘A’ B4.06 ‘AT 898 ‘A’ R4.01
‘B’ 85.34 ‘B’ B5.26 ‘B’ 87.48 ‘B’ 4.99
Second Quarter ‘A’ B6.88 ‘AT R4.32 ‘A’ B8.20 ‘A’ B5.10
‘B’ B7.46 ‘B’ £5.02 ‘B’ £7.95 ‘B> £4.22
Third Quarter ‘A’ 86.22 ‘AT B5.03 ‘AT B641 ‘A’ 85.00
‘B 86.12 ‘B’ B#5.33 ‘B” £6.50 ‘B’ 85.23
Fourth Quarter ‘A’ B5.89 ‘A’ B5.04 ‘A’ B5.99 ‘A’ R4.95
‘B’ £5.70 ‘B’ B5.35 ‘B’ £7.50 ‘B’ #5.22
2018
High Low
First Quarter ‘A’ £6.50 ‘A’ B5.20
‘B’ £5.98 ‘B'£5.36

(b) Holders
The number of shareholders of record as of 31 December 2017 was 424,

Common shares outstanding as of 31 December 2017 were 57,803,419 broken down as
follows:

Nationality Class |No. of Shares|Percentage

Filipino - A A 36,166,970 62.57

Filipino - B B 3,919,236 6.78
Foreign B 17,717,213 |  30.65
Total 57,803,419 | 100.00

The top 20 stockholders as of 31 December 2017 are as follows:

No. of
Shareholder Shares Held %
1. | Kepwealth, Inc. 30.532.930 | 52.822
2. | Keppel Corporation Ltd. 16,804,087 | 29.227
3. | PCD Nominee Corp. — Filipino 6,830,625 11.817
4. | International Container Terminal Services, Inc, 2,121,287 3.670
5. | PCD Nominee Corp. — Foreign 604,915 1.047
6. | Soh Ngoi May 83,179 0.144
7. | Willy Y. C. Lim 60,175 0.104
8. | Edbert G. Tantuco 50,017 0.087
9. | El Observatorio De Manila 45,070 0.078
10. | Emilio C. Tiu 23,238 0.040
11. | National Book Store, Inc. 22,422 0.039
12. | Ang Guan Piao 21,900 0.038
13. | Manolo Z. Alcasabas 21,170 0.037
14. | Willy Yew Chai Lim 20,085 0.035




15. | Yeo Chee Chiow 18,848 0.033
16. | Liwayway Sy 17,938 0.031
17. | Ma. Victoria R. Del Rosario 17,938 0.031
18. | Ramon R. Del Rosario Jr. 17.938 0.031
19. | Dr. Victorino Medrano Jr. &/or Ofelia R. Medrano 13,952 0.024
20. | Procurador General de Padres Franciscano de Manila 11,211 0.019

Josefina Tengco Reyes 11,211 0.019

(c) Dividends

The declaration and payment of dividends will depend, among others, upon the
Company’s earnings, cash flow, capital requirements and financial condition in addition to
other factors. Cash dividends are subject to approval by the Board of Directors (BOD) but
no stockholders’ approval is required. Dividends are payable to stockholders whose names
are recorded in the stock and transfer books as of the record date fixed by the Board. The
Company declared cash dividends in 2017, 2016 and 2015. Details of cash dividend are as

follows:
Y2017 Y2016 Y2015
Date of BOD Approval June 16 June 17 June 19
Record Date July 3 July 1 July 6
Payment Date July 27 July 27 July 30
Amount of Dividend per Share £0.10 or 10% | 20.10 or 10% | £0.10 or 10%

(d) Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

There has been no sale of securities within the past three years which were not registered
under the SRC. Neither is there any claim for exemption from registration made by the
Company.

6 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Results for the Year
Year Ended 2017

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (KPH) and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) recorded a net
income of £54.9 million in 2017, higher than £23.8 million in 2016 and £26.9 million in 2015.
The increase was primarily due to higher revenue this year of 291.2 million as against £44.7
million in 2016, and £46.3 million in 2015, Revenues in 2017 were mainly from gain on sale of
investment properties, rental income, interest income, equity in net earnings of an associate, and
management fees. The increase in revenue was partially offset by higher operating expenses of
£23.6 million in 2017 and higher provision for income tax of 812.8 million.

The Company realized gain on sale on investment properties of £49.6 million from sale of its
condominium units in Makati City, Cebu City and residential unit at Batangas City. The
proceeds received from the sale of properties amounted to £52.90 million.

Rental revenue for the year amounted to 218.0 million as against rental revenue of B20.5
million and £19.4 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively. The decrease was due to the sale of
the condominium units.



Interest income from short-term and long-term loans granted to related company and short-term
deposits this year amounted to £12.5 million, £10.6 million in 2016, and £9.6 million in 2015.
The interest earned from the loans granted to a related company amounted to £11.5 million,
£10.0 million and B8.0 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Interest rates are agreed
upon with related party on arms-length based on lowest loan rates of at least three (3)
commercial banks on date of granting or renewal of the short-term loan. The interest earned
from short-term deposits amounted to £0.9 million, £0.6 million, and £1.6 million in 2017,
2016 and 2015, respectively.

The equity in net earnings of associate CLI as of 31 December 2017 amounted to £8.7 million
lower than in 2016 of £10.3 million and in 2015 of £14.8 million. This was brought by lower
income realized by CLI during the years. The Company received cash dividend from CLI
amounting to £3.5 million in 2017, £11.1 million in 2016 and £17.5 million in 2015.

Management fees charged to related parties amounted to £1.8 million, 1.4 million and 1.2
million in 2017, 2016, and 20135, respectively.

Operating expenses amounted to £23.6 million, £16.7 million, and £14.7 million in 2017, 2016
and 2015, respectively. The increase in expenses was brought mainly by: a) higher salaries &
benefits due to accrual of retirement plan benefits for the staff and cost of transfer of employees
from related company to KPH; b) higher professional (legal) fees; ¢) higher provision for
impairment losses on creditable withholding taxes; and d) commission for the sale of
investment properties.

The Company realized other comprehensive income from fair value gain adjustment on AFS
financial assets of £0.5 million in 2017, £3.7 million in 2016, and £0.8 million in 2015.

Financial Condition

The cash position of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to £87.9
million as against the same period last year of £24.3 million. The increase of 263.6 million was
brought mainly by the proceeds from the sale of investment property of £52.9 million, net effect
of granting of new loan and repayment amounting to £75.0 million, interest income received
from loans and deposits of £12.8 million, and receipt of dividends of £3.5 million. This was
partially offset by payment of dividends of £69.0 million to sharcholders, net cash provided for
operating activities of 1 1.5 million and acquisition of office equipment of £ 0.1 million.

Total receivables both current and non-current this year amounted to £276.0 million as against
last year of £353.7 million. The decrease was brought mainly by repayment of short-term and
long-term loans of £207.5 million partially offset by the granting of new short-term loans
amounting to £132.5 million, with 90-day, interest bearing of 2.8% to 3.5% and collection from
rental receivable.

Other current assets increased to £0.7 million as against 20.1 million last year. The increase
was due to higher advances subject for liquidation and prepaid expenses.

Available-for-sale financial assets related to a quoted club share at fair value price as of
December 2017 and 2016 amounting to £20.0 million and £19.5 million, respectively.

Investment in an associate increased from £415.2 million in 2016 to £420.4 million this year.
The increase was mainly due to equity in net income of CLI of 8.7 million. This was reduced
by the cash dividend received from CLI this year amounting to £3.5 million.

Investment properties and Property and equipment decreased from £209.5 million in 2016 to
£206.0 million this period due to sale of depreciated condominium units with book value of



£3.3 million, depreciation of £0.3 million and partially offset by purchase of office equipment
amounting to £0.1 million.

Total liabilities increased from £8.6 million in 2016 to £11.1 million this year. The increase of
P2.5 million was due to the net effect of higher accruals of operating expenses by 24.4 million,
particularly the increase in accrual of retirement cost by B4.0 million, and payable to
government agencies including income tax liability of 20.6 million. This was partially offset by
decrease in security deposits, advance rental and deferred tax liability by 2.5 million.

Total equity as of 31 December 2017 amounted to £1,004.2 million and £1,017.9 million in
December 2016, Retained earnings amounted to P477.2 million as of December 2017 as
compared to £438.2 million in December 2016. The increase was due to net income after non-
controlling interests of £44.8 million partially offset by cash dividend of 5.8 million.

The equity attributable to equity holders of the parent amounted to £620.4 million and £580.9
million as of December 2017 and 2016, respectively. The net book value per share as of
December 2017 was £10.73 as against December 2016 of 210.05. The earnings per share
attributable to the equity holders of the parent as of December 2017 and 2016 were £0.78 and
£0.24, respectively.

Year Ended 2016

KPH recorded a net income of £23.8 million in 2016 as against £26.9 million in 2015 and 26.2
million in 2014. The Company achieved revenues of £44.7 million this year as against £46.3
million in 2015, and £46.2 million in 2014. Revenues in 2016 were mainly from rental income,
equity share in net earnings of associates, interest income, dividend income and management
fees.

The Company realized rental revenue of £20.5 million, £19.4 million and £19.3 million in
2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, brought by increase in rental rate. The equity in net
earnings of associate CLI as of December 31, 2016 of £10.3 million was lower than in 2015 of
£14.8 million and in 2014 of £20.0 million. This was brought by lower income realized by CLI
in 2016. The Company received cash dividend from CLI amounting to 811.1 million in 2016,
£17.5 million in 2015 and £14.0 million in 2014.

The Company earned interest income from loans granted to a related company and from short-
term deposits amounting to £10.6 million in 2016, £9.6 million in 2015, and 4.7 million in
2014. The interest earned from the loans granted to a related company amounted to 210.0
million, £8.0 million and £2.0 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The increase was
brought by the higher short-term loan granted from 2100.0 million in 2015 to £229.5 million in
2016. This was partially offset by lower interest earned from long-term loan due to repayment
of principal amounting to £50.0 million. The interest earned from short-term deposits
amounted to £0.6 million, 1.6 million and #2.7 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
The decrease was due to lower funds in short-term deposits.

The Company earned dividend income from an associate of 21.6 million in 2016. Management

fees charged to related parties amounted to £1.4 million in 2016, and £1.2 million in 2015, and
2014.

The Company generated other income of £0.3 million this year as against £1.3 million in 2015
and £1.1 million in 2014, The decrease was brought by reversal of prior years’ accrual
amounting to £0.7 million and commission earned from joint venture agreement with related
company of 0.3 million in 2015 and £0.9 in 2014.

Operating expenses in 2016 amounted to 216.7 million, 14% higher as against 214,7 million in
2015, and 4% lower as against 217.5 million in 2014. Increase in expenses was brought mainly



by the impact of the recovered creditable withholding tax which was previously provided with
allowance in prior years and none this year. Salaries and benefits, taxes and licenses, travel and
transportation cost, utilities and office supplies also increased and were partially offset by lower
depreciation expense, membership dues, professional fees and others.

The Company realized other comprehensive income from fair value gain adjustment on AFS
financial assets of £3.7 million in 2016, £0.8 million in 2015 and nil in 2014.

Financial Condition

The cash position of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to £24.3
million as against the same period last year of B55.1 million. The decrease of 56% or R30.8
million was brought mainly by the net effect of granting of new loan and repayment amounting
to £29.5 million, payment of dividends of £15.7 million and buy-back of KPH shares
amounting to B12.7 million. This was partially offset by the receipt of cash dividend of 212.7
million, receipt of interest from loans and deposits of £10.2 million and net cash provided by
operating activities of 24.0 million

Total net receivables this year amounted to £353.7 million as against last year of £324.2
million. The increase was by brought mainly by 2176.8 million short-term loan with 90-day,
interest bearing of 2.8% to 3.2% granted to a related company, increase in interest receivable of
£1.2 million in 2016 from £0.8 million in 2015 and increase in other receivables of 1.5 million
as against last year of £1.2 million. The increase was partially offset by principal payment on
long term loan of £50.0 million and payment of short-term loan receivable of 897.3 million.

Other current assets decreased to £0.1 million this year as against £1.0 million in 2015. The
decrease was due primarily to application of creditable withholding tax and input vat against
provision for income tax and output tax.

Available-for-sale financial assets related to a quoted club share as of December 2016 and 2015
amounted to £19.5 million and R15.8 million, respectively. Investment in an associate
decreased from £416.0 million in 2015 to £415.2 million this year. The decrease was due
primarily to lower equity share in net income of CLI of £10.3 million this year as against 214.9
million 2015. The share was reduced by the cash dividend received from CLI this year
amounting to 11.1 million as against B17.5 million in 2015. Investment properties and
Property and equipment decreased from £209.9 million in 2015 to £209.6 million this period
due to depreciation. There was purchase of office equipment amounting to 0.03 million this
year and nil in 2015.

Total liabilities increased from £7.4 million in 2015 to 8.6 million this year. The 13.0%
increase was due increase in accruals for expenses and provision for income tax.

Total equity as of 31 December 2016 amounted to £1,017.9 million and £1,018.8 million in
December 2015. Retained earnings amounted to £438.2 million as of December 2016 as
compared to £430.7 million in December 2015. The increase was due to net income after non-
controlling interests of 213.6 million partially offset by cash dividend of £6.0 million. The
number of treasury shares increased from 12,806,081 shares amounting to £9.9 million to
15,370,081 shares at B22.6 million. This was due to purchase from the open market of
2,564,000 shares at P4.95 per share plus related expenses.

The equity attributable to equity holders of the parent amounted to £580.9 million and 8582 .4
million as of December 2016 and 2015, respectively. The net book value per share as of
December 2016 was £10.05 as against same period last year of 89.65. The earnings per share
attributable to the equity holders of the parent as of December 2016 and 2015 were £0.24 and
0.22, respectively.



Year Ended 2015

Results for the Year

KPH recorded a net income of 826.9 million in 2015 as against £26.2 million in 2014 and £20.8
million in 2013. The Company achieved revenues of £46.3 million this year as against £46.2
million in 2014, and £45.1 million in 2013. Revenues in 2015 were mainly from rental income,
equity in net earnings of associates, interest income, and management fees.

The Company realized rental revenue of £19.4 million, £19.3 million and £18.8 million in
2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, brought by increase in rental rate. The equity share in net
carnings of associate CLI as of December 31, 2015 of £14.8 million was lower than in 2014 of
£20.0 million and in 2013 of £17.9 million. This was brought by lower income realized by CLI
in 2015. The Company received cash dividend from CLI amounting to £17.5 million in 2015
and £14.0 million in 2014 and stock dividend of 6,549,823 shares in 2013.

The Company earned interest income of £9.6 million in 2015, £4.7 million in 2014 and £6.9 in
2013. Out of the 9.6 million interests earned by the Company in 2015, 8.0 million came
from interest on loan granted to related party and £1.6 million from short-term deposits. In
2014, interest on loan to related party amounted to £2.0 million and nil in 2013. Interest earned
from short-term deposits went down to £1.6 million this year from £2.7 million in 2014 and
£6.9 million in 2013. This was due to the decrease in short-term deposits brought by the
payment of dividends and granting of loans to related company

Management fees charged to related parties amounted to 1.2 million in 2015, 2014, and 2013.

The Company generated other income of £1.3 million this year as against £1.1 million in 2014
and £0.4 million in 2013. The increase was brought by reversal of prior years’ accrual
amounting to 20.7 million and commission earned from joint venture agreement with related
company of 0.3 million.

Operating expenses in 2015 amounted to £14.7 million, 16% lower as against £17.5 million in
2014, and 32% lower as against £21.7 million in 2013. Lower expenses in 2015 was brought
by a) the impact of the recovered creditable withholding tax against provisions on input tax
amounting to 21.5 million b) lower depreciation expense in 2015 amounting to R0.4 million as
against £1.8 million in 2014 and £2.3 million in 2013. The decrease was partially offset by
higher personnel expenses of £7.0 million in 2015 as against £6.6 million in 2014 and £6.7
million in 2013.

The Company realized other comprehensive income from fair value gain adjustment on AFS
financial assets of 0.8 million as against nil in 2014 and fair value loss of £1.5 million in 2013.

Financial Condition

The cash position of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to £55.1
million as against the same period last year of £127.9 million. The decrease of 57% or £72.8
million was brought mainly by the loan granted to a related company of £100.0 million and
dividend payment of £14.2 million by KPH. This was offset by receipt of £18.2 million
dividends, receipt of B12.5 million as first installment payment of long-term loan, receipt of
interest income from loans and short-term deposits of £9.3 million and net cash provided by
operating activities of 1.5 million.

Total receivables this year amounted to £324.2 million as against last year of £236.1 million.
The increase was by brought mainly by £100.0 million short-term loan with 90-day, interest
bearing of 2.9% to 3.4% granted to related company, increase in interest receivable of B0.8



million in 2015 from 0.5 million in 2014 and increase in other receivables of £1.2 million as
against last year of 0.2 million. The increase was partially offset by first installment payment
of B12.5 million of the £200 million long-term loan granted in 2014.

Other current assets increased to 21.0 this year as against £0.2 million in 2014. The increase
was due primarily to net recovery of provision for fully impaired creditable withholding tax and
input VAT of £1.7 million. This was offset by lower creditable withholding tax as of December
31, 2015 of £2.1 million as against £3.0 million in 2014,

Available-for-sale financial assets related to a quoted club share as of December 2015 and 2014
amounted to P15.8 million and R15.0 million, respectively. Investment in an associate
decreased from R419.6 million in 2014 to 2416.0 million this year. The decrease was due
primarily to lower equity share in net income of CLI of £14.9 million this year as against £20.0
million 2014, The share was reduced by the cash dividend received from CLI this year
amounting to £17.5 million as against £14.0 million in 2014 and provision for impairment on
investment in an associate of £0.2 million this year. Investment properties and Property and
equipment decreased from B210.4 million in 2014 to £209.9 million this period due to
depreciation. There were no major purchases made in 2015 and 2014.

Total liabilities decreased from £7.9 million in 2014 to 7.4 million this year. The slight
decrease was due to reversal of accruals and provisions.

Total equity as of 31 December 2015 amounted to £1,018.8 million and £1,005.3 million in
December 2014. Retained earnings amounted to B430.7 million as of December 2015 as
compared to R423.5 million in 2014. The increase was due to net income after non-controlling
interests of 213.2 million partially offset by cash dividend of £6.0 million.

The equity attributable to equity holders of the parent amounted to 2582.4 million and B574.4
million as of December 2015 and 2014, respectively. The net book value per share as of
December 2015 was 29.65 as against same period last year of B9.52. The earnings per share
attributable to the equity holders of the parent as of December 2015 and 2014 were £0.22 and
£0.20, respectively.

Plan of Action for 2018

KPH shall focus on maintaining and adding value on its investment properties. Among others,
the strategies may include purchase of shares of stock, purchase of additional investment
properties, increasing occupancy and rental rates. Certain properties may be considered for sale
where it can contribute the best value to the Company and its sharcholders. Investment
properties of strategic value shall be reviewed for further investments where appropriate.



Key Performance Indicators

The key performance indicators of the Company for the last three (3) fiscal years are follows:

Particulars 2017 2016 2015

Current Ratio
(Current Assets/Current Liabilities) 31.01 | 52.22 | 45.09
Acid Test Ratio or Quick Ratio
(Monetary Current Assets/Current Li abilities) 3093 | 52.20 | 44.87

Solvency Ratio
(Net Income + Depreciation)/Total Liabilities 4.97 2.80 3.72

Assets to Equity Ratio 1.01 1.01 1.01
Debt Ratio

(Total Liabilities/Total Assets) 0.01 0.01 0.01
Debt to Equity Ratio

(Total Liabilities/Stockholders' Equity) 0.01 0.01 0.01
Return on Assets (%)

(Net Income/Total Assets 5.40 231 2.62
Return on Equity (%)

(Net Income/Stockholders’ Equity 5.46 2.33 2.64
Earnings per Share Attributable to Equity

Holders of Parent () 0.78 0.24 0.22

There are no known events that may trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation that was not
disclosed. There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Company with unsolicited entities or
other persons created during the reporting period that has not been disclosed. The Company has
no material commitment for capital expenditures for the next twelve (12) months that would
need to raise or generate funds for.

There are no trends, events or uncertainties that may have a material effect or impact, whether
favorable or unfavorable, on the revenues or income from continuing operations of the
Company. The financial condition or results of operations of the Company is not affected by
any seasonal change.

7 - Financial Statements

The audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 December 2017
and schedules listed in the accompanying Index to Financial Statements and Supplementary
Schedules are filed as part of this Form 17-A.

The financial statements attached to the report include the audited statements of financial
position, statements of income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
stockholders’ equity, statements of cash flows and notes to the financial statements. Such
reports form part of the attachment to the SEC Annual Report Form 17-A.



8 - Information on Independent Accountants and Other Related Matters
(a) External Audit Fees and Services

(i) Audit and Related Fees - The Company’s new auditor for 2017 is Isla Lipana & Co.
(PwC) to audit the current year’s financial statements. The aggregate fee billed by
Isla Lipana for the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements was £292,228
in 2017 and 2016. In 2015 payment to SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. (SGV) amounted
to £350,000. There were no other services performed by Isla Lipana for 2017 and
2016 and by SGV for 2015. The services performed by the Company’s external
auditors and the fees are reviewed by the Audit Committee prior to submission to the
Board of Directors for approval.

(ii) Tax Fees —No tax fees were paid for the years 2017, 2016 and 2015.
(iii) Other Fees — No other fees were paid for the years 2017, 2016 and 2015,

(iv) Audit Committee’s Approval Policies & Procedures — The Committee evaluates
proposals based on the quality of service, commitment for deadline and fees. The
Committee may require a presentation from each proponent to clarify some issues.

(b) Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

Accounting standards in accordance with PFRS are stated in Note 2 to the financial
statements. For the last three (3) fiscal years, there were no disagreements with the
independent accountants relating to accounting principles or practices, financial statements
disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure.

PART III - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
9 - Directors and Executive Officers of the Issuer
(a) Directors, Including Independent Directors and Executive Officers

There are seven (7) members of the Board, three (3) of whom are independent directors.
The term of office of each member is one (1) year and the members are elected at the
Annual Stockholders” Meeting, to hold office until the next succeeding annual meeting and
until their respective successors have been elected and qualified. A director who is elected
to fill any vacancy holds office for the unexpired portion of the term of his predecessor.
The current members of the Board of Directors are the following:

Board of Directors

(i) Paul Tan Poh Lee, 64, Singaporean, has been elected as Chairman of the Board of
the Company on 5 April 2017. He has been the Group Controller of Keppel Corp.
Ltd.(KCL) since 2006 and concurrently Chief Financial Officer of Keppel Offshore &
Marine (Keppel O&M), Ltd. in 2017. He is also a director of several Keppel Group
of companies. From 1988 until 2006, he was at various times, Group Accountant,
Group Accounts Manager, Financial Controller, Deputy Controller of KCL. He is
responsible for the Group Accounts of Keppel Group and provides advice to Senior
Management and his peers in accounting and corporate matter. Mr. Tan is a Fellow
of Association of Chartered and Certified Accountants. He has more than 40 years of
experience in his field of profession.
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(ii) Alan L Claveria, 46, Filipino, has been elected as President and appointed as regular
Director of the Company on 14 September 2017. Prior to his appointment, he was the
Senior Manager, Administration and Corporate Affairs of Keppel Philippines Marine,
Inc. He is concurrently the President and Director of Consort Capital, Inc. He also
holds the position of Treasurer and Director in KPSI Property, Inc. and other Keppel
companies in the Philippines. He provides advice in matters relating to corporate
affairs and communication, administration and human resources, drawing from his
experience from holding various positions in Keppel's different business units
involved in shipbuilding and ship repair, towage and salvage, investment and real
estate. Mr. Claveria holds a Master in Business Administration degree from the
Ateneo Graduate School of Business and finished BS Management, Major in Legal
Management at the Ateneo de Manila University. He has been with Keppel in the
Philippines for over 20 years.

(iii) Celso P. Vivas, 71, Filipino, has been elected as an Independent Director of Keppel
Philippines Holdings, Inc. since June 2005 and currently the Chairman and Lead
Independent Director of the Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Company.
Mr. Vivas is a Certified Public Accountant. He is an Independent Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee of Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. and
independent Director and member of the Audit Committee of Keppel Philippines
Properties, Inc. He is also an Independent Director of Republic Glass Holdings since
June 2017. He is also a regular Director of Goodsoil Marine Realty, Inc., and
Goodwealth Realty Development, Inc., subsidiaries of the Company and regular
Director of Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc. He is a member of Marubeni Foundation’s
Board of Trustees. He was Risk Consulting Partner and Assurance Business Advisory
Partner of SGV & Company until his retirement in 2001. Mr. Vivas obtained his
Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration (Cum Laude) from the University of
the East. He also obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Management from the
Asian Institute of Management (SGV & Co. Scholar). He is also a graduate of
Company Directors’ Course from Australian Institute of Company Directors (ICD
Scholar). Mr. Vivas has 50 years of experience in audit, finance, enterprise risk
management and corporate governance.

(iv) Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco, 66, Filipino. has been re-clected as Independent Director
of the Company on 08 May 2017. He was a non-executive Director and member of
the Audit Committee of KPHI from June 2002 to March 2015. He is currently an
Adviser to the Board of Directors of First Metro Investment Corp. since 2015, non-
executive director of First Metro Asset Management Inc. since 2017, and Independent
Director of Mapfre Insular Insurance Corp. and Omnipay, Inc. since 2016 and 2017,
respectively. He is also Trustee of De La Salle College of St. Benilde since 2013 and
Foundation for Carmelite Scholastics since 2012. He is also a non-executive Director
of Rafael-Alunan Agro Development Inc. since 2006. Mr. Ongsingco was the
President and Chief Operating Officer of Insular Life Assurance Co. Ltd. since 2004
to 2015. From 2002 to 2015, he was the Vice-Chairman and/or Director of various
Insular Life subsidiaries and affiliates such as Union Bank of the Philippines,
Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corp., Insular Savings Bank, Mapfre Insular Insurance
Corp., Insular Healthcare Inc., Insular Investment Corp., Asian Hospital and Keppel
Subic Shipyard, Inc. Mr. Ongsingeo graduated from the De La Salle University with
dual Bachelor’s Degrees (Magna Cum Laude) in Economics and Accounting. He also
obtained Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the University of the
Philippines and in National Security Administration from the National Defense
College of the Philippines (both with Honors). Mr. Ongsingco has 44 years of
experience in banking, and insurance.
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(v) Ramon J. Abejuela, 68 years old, Filipino, has been elected as Independent Director
of the Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. on 14 September 2017. He is also the
Independent Director of Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. (KPPI) from November
1999 to June 2008. He was re-elected as in 2009 and currently the Chairman of the
Audit Committee of the KPPL. He also serves as Director and Vice Chairman of the
Board of Philippine Nutri-Foods Corporation and NCP Publishing Inc. since 2004 to
present. Mr. Abejuela holds a Bachelor of Chemical Engineering (cum laude) Degree
from De La Salle University and Master’s Degree in Business Management — General
Management Curriculum from Asian Institute of Management. Mr. Abejuela has
more than 40 years of experience in the field of financial planning, control and
consultancy.

(vi) Stefan Tong Wai Mun, 45, Malaysian, has been regular Director since June 2007.
He was President from June 2007 to September 2017. He has been regular Director
of Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. since February 2010 and its Executive Vice-
President since June 2011. He is also a Director of Keppel Philippine Properties, Inc.
since June 2007 and holds directorships of various Keppel companies in the
Philippines. Mr. Tong graduated from University of Western Australia with a
Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting and Finance (Honors). He is a Chartered
Accountant and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. He
has more than 20 years of experience in banking, finance and real estate.

(vii) Felicidad V. Razon, 57, Filipino, has been elected as a regular Director of the
Company last May 2014. She joined the Company as Finance Manager in May 2008
and has been elected as Treasurer in June 2008 and appointed as Vice
President/Treasurer and Compliance Officer in November 2013. She is also a
Chairman/President of Goodsoil Marine Realty, Inc. and Goodwealth Realty
Development Corp., President of Consort Land, Inc. and regular Director and Officer
of Keppel companies. She graduated from Polytechnic University of the Philippines
with Bachelor of Science Degree in Commerce major in Accountancy and is a
Certified Public Accountant.

Executive Officers
(i) Alan I. Claveria - (See foregoing Director’s profile)
(i1) Felicidad V. Razon, Vice President/Treasurer — (See foregoing Director’s profile)

(iii) Ma. Melva E. Valdez, Corporate Secretary — 58, Filipino, holder of degrees of
Bachelor of Arts in Political Science and Bachelor of Laws from the University of the
Philippines, has been the Corporate Secretary of the Company since 1998 and a
regular Director since 2001 up to June 2016. She is a name Partner of the law firm of
Bello Valdez Caluya and Fernandez Law Offices. She is also currently Corporate
Secretary of Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. and Mabuhay Vinyl Corporation
(both listed companies) and Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. (a public company). She
is likewise the Corporate Secretary of Asian Institute of Management and Keppel
Subic Shipyard, Inc., and various Keppel companies in the Philippines and Director of
Leighton Contractors (Phils.) Inc. Atty. Valdez has more than 30 years of working
experience in her field of profession as a lawyer.

(iv)Lory Anne P. Manuel-McMullin, 47, Filipino, has been the Asst. Corporate
Secretary of the Company since 1998. She is also the Asst. Corporate Secretary of
Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. (a public company), Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc.,
Consort Land, Inc., Consort Capital, Inc., Logwin Air + Ocean Philippines, Inc.,
Goodwealth Realty Development Corp., Goodwealth Ventures, Inc., Kepventures,
Inc., Kepwealth, Inc., KPSI Property, Inc., Keppel FELS Energy, Inc., Keppel FELS
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(b)

()

(d)

Energy Manila, Inc., Keppel Energy Consultancy, Inc., Goodsoil Marine Realty, Inc.,
Keppel Batangas Shipyard, Inc., Keppel IVI Capital, Inc., KP Capital, Inc., Keppel
Cebu Shipyard, Inc., and Dyna-Mac Keppel Philippines, Inc. She is also a regular
Director and Corporate Secretary/Treasurer of Cominix (Philippines), Inc. and Saint-
Gobain Philippines Co. Ltd., Inc.; Director/Corporate Secretary of Mektec
(Philippines) Corp., Tokai Electronics Philippines, Inc. and A + O Distribution Corp.;
Director of Yosemite Holdings, Inc. and Cushman Wakefield Philippines, Inc.;
Corporate Secretary of Mitsuba Philippines Technical Center Corp., Philippine
Nagano Seiko, Inc., Cavite Nagano Seiko, Inc., South Sea Nagano Development, Inc.,
Karumona Nagano Seiko, Inc., Nachi Pilipinas Industries, Inc., Technol Eight
Philippines Corporation, CMC Communications (Philippines), Inc., and Sumi
Philippines Wiring Systems Corp.; Chief Representative of Charabot S.A. and
Resident Agent of Mektec Corp. (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., Entel HK Ltd., Roquette
Singapore Pte. Ltd. and SEB Asia Ltd. Atty. McMullin is a Junior Partner of JGLaw
Offices. She graduated from the University of Santo Tomas with Bachelor’s degrees
in Communication Arts and Laws.

Significant Employees

There are no employees other than the officers mentioned in the preceding subsection who
are expected to make a significant contribution to the business.

Family Relationship

There are no family relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or
affinity among directors, officers, and persons nominated or chosen by the company to
become directors, officers, any security holder of certain record, beneficial owner or
management.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

To the knowledge and/or information of the Company, none of the directors and officers
was involved in any bankruptcy proceedings during the last five (5) years. Neither have
they been convicted by final judgment in any criminal proceedings, or been subjected to
any order, judgment or decree of any court of jurisdiction, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting their involvement in any type of
business, securities, commodities or banking activities, nor found in an action by any court
or administrative bodies to have violated a securities and commodities law or regulation.

10 - Executive Compensation

As the Company is an investment holding company, it has three (3) senior officers, namely the
President, Vice President — Treasurer, and Internal Audit and Risk Manager.

The total aggregate compensation (inclusive of perquisites and other personal benefits) of the
senior officers of the Company during the last two (2) fiscal years and the projected aggregate
compensation to be paid for the current fiscal year are as follows:

Description Year Salary Bonus ther Am".ml
Compensation
2(.} 18 £6,500.000 None None
Aggregate for All Officers Exfmate
gereg 2017 | P5,215,000 | None None
2016 £4,690,000 None None




2018
Aggregate for All Officers | Estimate 6900000 | Noue Nox
& Directors as a Group 2017 | 85,440,000 | None None
2016 | 5,110,000 | None None

Under the Company’s By-Laws, directors shall receive such compensation for their services
from time to time as maybe fixed by the stockholders. There are no warrants or options held by
the Company’s officers and directors. The Company does not have any other arrangements
pursuant to which any director is compensated directly or indirectly for any service provided as
a director. There are also no special employment contracts with executive officers of the
Company. The Company has no existing options, warrants or rights to purchase any securities.

11 - Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management
Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

As of 31 December 2017, the Company knows of no one who beneficially owns in excess of
5% of the Company’s common stock except as set forth in the table below:

Name of Beneficial

Title of Name, Address of Record/ Owner & Citizenship No. of Percent
Class Beneficial Owner Relationship with Shares Held of Class
Record Owner
Common | Kepwealth, Inc. ' ‘A’ 28,817,182
Unit 3-B, Country Space | ‘B’: 1,715,748
Bldg. None Filipino 52.82
133 Sen. Gil J. Puyat Ave.,
Salcedo Village, Brgy. Bel- 30,532,930
Air,
Makati City
Common | Keppel Corporation Ltd.?
| Harbour Front Ave,, #18:01) w00 ISingaporean|*B": 16,894,087 | 2023

Keppel Bay Tower,
Singapore 098632

Common | PCD Nominee Corp.’
37/F Enterprise Bldg.,
Ayala Avenue, Makati City

Filipino [‘A’: 4,726,976
Filipino |‘B": 2,103,649
Foreign |‘B’: 604915
7,435,540

12.86

. Kepwealth, Ine. is majority-owned by Kepventure, Inc. The Chairman, or in his absence, the President of
Kepwealth, Inc. is duly authorized as proxy to vote in the shares of Kepwealth, Inc. in the Company.

2. Keppel Corporation Ltd. (KCL) is listed in the Singapore Stock Exchange. The Chairmarn of the Board, or in his
absence, the President or in his absence, the Chairman of the meeting, shall have the right to vote or direct
voting or disposition of the shareholdings of KCL in the Company.

3. PCD Nominee Corp. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Philippine Central Depository, Inc. (PCD). It is the
registered owner of the shares in the books of the Company's transfer agents in the Philippines. The beneficial
owners of such shares are PCD's participants. PCD holds the shares on their (beneficial owner behalf or on
behalf of their (PCD) clients. PCD is a private company organized by the major institutions actively participating
in the Philippine capital markets to implement an automated book-entry system of handling securities transactions
in the Philippines.
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Security Ownership of Management as of 31 December 2017

Amount and
T(':'lj:s‘s’f Name of Beneficial Owner ; :I:‘e'gu‘:; Citizenship |Tercentor
Ownership
Paul Tan Poh Lee / Chairman / Director ‘B’: 1(r) |Singaporean
Alan I. Claveria / President/Director ‘A’ 38(n) Filipino
Celso P. Vivas / Lead Independent Director ‘A ) Filipino
Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco / Independent Director ‘B:  1(r) Filipino
Common | Ramon J. Abejuela / Independent Director ‘A 1(n) Filipino
Stefan Tong Wai Mun / Director ‘B':  I(r) Malaysian
Felicidad V. Razon / Vice President-Treasurer /Director| ‘A’:  1(r) Filipino
Ma. Melva E. Valdez / Corporate Secretary - Filipino
Lory Anne P. Manuel-McMullin / Asst. Corp. Sec. - Filipino

Free float level

The Company has 17.95% or 10,376,358 shares owned by the public out of the 57,803,419 total
outstanding shares as of 31 December 2017.

12 - Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has transactions with its affiliates. The
significant transactions with affiliates are as follows:

(a) Lease agreements

GMRI

GMRI has a non-cancellable lease agreement with KPMI for a parcel of land used as a
shipyard site in Barrio San Miguel, Bauan, Batangas. The agreement covering these
properties is for a period of 50 years beginning 1993. The annual rental on the least
property is £6.0 million during the first five (5) years subject to 10% escalation after
every five (5) years. In May 2007, the lease contract was amended revising the annual
lease rate from B6.6 million to £10.2 million effective January 1, 2007, subject to 1.5%
escalation after every five (5) years. As of January 1, 2017, the annual lease rate
amounted to B10.5 million up to December 31, 2021. Rental income, based on the
straight-line method, amounted to 9.6 million in 2017, 2016, and 2015. Total
outstanding balance of lease receivables presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position representing lease differential in the computation of rent income using
straight line method amounted to £32.9 million and £34.8 million as at 31 December
2017 and 2016, respectively.

In 2015, the GMRI entered into a new lease agreement with KPMI for another parcel of
land covering a period of one (1) year commencing on | January 2015 to 31 December
2015, subject to yearly renewal. The lease agreement was renewed in 2017 and 2016
with monthly rental of £0.04 million. In 2017 and 2016, rental income earned from this
agreement amounted to £0.4 million.

GRDC

GRDC leases its properties to KPMI for a period of one (1) year commencing on 1
January 20135, subject to yearly renewal under such terms and conditions as may be
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(b)

mutually agreed upon by both parties. Total rent income recognized for the year
amounted to £0.3 million as of 31 December 2017 and 2016.

KPSI

KPSI leases certain properties to KPMI, KIVI, Kepwealth Property, and KECI for a
period of one (1) year, renewable annually. The lease contract with Kepwealth Property
was terminated on 31 October 2017. Lease contracts with KIVI and KECI are for two
(2) years and were last renewed on 1 April 2017 and 1 June 2017, respectively. Total rent
income recognized during the year amounted to 21.3 million both in 2017 and 2016.

Parent Company

The Parent Company and KPMI has an existing land lease agreement on a piece of land
which is the subject of complaint against the PNOC. The monthly rent for the said piece
of land is £0.2 million for a period of one (1) year, subject to yearly renewal. In July
2016, the lease agreement was renewed for another year with no increase in the monthly
rental rate. Total rental income recognized amounted to £2.1 million in 2017 and 2016.

Total rental income earned from these agreements amounted to £13.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Loan agreements with KPMI
GMRI

GMRI granted a long-term interest-bearing loan to KPMI in September 2014 amounting
to #200.0 million. The loan has a term of five (5) years on principal payment with grace
period of 15 months and payable in equal quarterly instalments. The loan is subject to
interest re-pricing on semi-annual basis. The interest rate applied ranges from 3.6% to
4.6% in 2017 (2016 - 3.5% to 3.8%). KPMI made partial payment of the loan amounting
to £50.0 million, both in 2017 and 2016. The current and non-current portion of the loan
receivable amounting to £50.0 million and £37.5 million, respectively as of 31 December
2017, (2016 — 250 million and P87.5 million, respectively). Accrued interest receivable
as of 31 December 2017 amounted to £0.3 (2016 - 2 0.4 million).

In December 2015, GMRI granted 45-day short-term loan to KPMI amounting to £15.0
million with interest of 2.9%. In 2016, KPMI obtained additional short-term loan of
£82.8 million for 45 to 90 days at interest rates ranging from 2.6% to 3.2%. In February
2017. the outstanding short-term loan as at December 31, 2016 amounting to BR7.5
million was converted to five (5) year long-term loan, payable in 20 equal consecutive
quarterly instalments, and interest of 4.7%, subject to semi-annual repricing. In
November 2017, the said loan was pre-terminated and was fully paid. Interest earned
and received from this loan amounted to £2.9 million.

In June and December 2017, GMRI granted KPMI additional loans of £18.0 million and
212.5 million, respectively, with terms of 45 to 90 days at 3% interest rate. Interest
earned from these short-term loans amounted to £0.7 million. Accrued interest receivable
amounted to £0.01 million as of 31 December 2017.



()

KPSI

KPSI granted short-term loan to KPMI on 23 February 2016 amounting to £15.0 million
with 90-day term and interest of 3.2%. Upon maturity, interest was paid and the
principal loan was extended for another 90 days with interest of 2.9% until 21 August
2016 where the principal loan and interest were fully paid.

In October 2016, KPSI granted another short-term loan of £15.0 million with 90-day
term and interest of 3.2%. Upon maturity, the loan was extended with 88 to 90-day term
with interest ranging from 3.0% - 3.5%. Interest income and accrued interest receivable
recognized by KPSI as of December 31, 2017 amounted to £0.5 million and 0.1 million,
respectively (2016 - 0.3 million and £0.1 million, respectively).

Parent Company

The Parent Company started to grant short-term loans to KPMI in June 2015. As of 3]
December 2016, KPMI has loan balance of £77.0 million. The loan granted has 45 to 90
days term with option to renew upon maturity with interest ranging from 2.8% to 3.4%.
Of the £77.0 million loan balance as at 31 December 2016, £24.0 million and R28.0
million were fully paid in April 2017 and May 2017, respectively. The remaining £25.0
million was renewed upon its maturity and still outstanding as at 31 December 2017. In
June 2017, an additional £52.0 million loan was granted with 90-day term at 3% interest
and was renewed thereafter, upon its maturity. In November 2017, another £50.0 million
loan was granted with 88-day term at 3% interest. QOutstanding loan granted to KPMI as
of 31 December 2017 amounted to £127.0 million. Interest income recognized by the
Parent Company from these loans amounted to 2.4 million in 2017 (2016 - B2.5
million). Accrued interest receivable amounted to £0.3 million as at 31 December 2017
(2016 - £0.4 million).

Total interest income earned from these loans amounted to £11.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2017 (2016 - 210.0 million).

Management Fees

On 1 February 2013, the Parent Company entered into a new management agreement
with Kepventure, Inc., Kepwealth Inc., KIVI, and Kepwealth Property for a monthly
management fee of £2,000, £8,000, £15,000, and £50,000, respectively. The monthly
management fees are subject to change depending upon the extent and volume of
services provided by the Parent Company. This will cover regular consultancy, handling
of financial reporting, personnel and administration services including payroll and other
government documentary requirements. The agreement is considered renewed every
year thereafter, unless one party gives the other a written notice of termination at least
three (3) months prior to the expiration date. Subsequent increases in the management
fee were made the following years and in 2017 the monthly management fees of
Kepventure, Inc., Kepwealth, Inc. and Kepwealth Property increased to 22,500, 210,000,
and 112,000, respectively. The management agreement with Kepwealth Property was
terminated on 31 October 2017 due to the sale of Kepwealth Property to a third party.

The Parent Company also provides accounting services to KECI, an entity under
common control, for a monthly management fee of £25,000. The agreement is
considered renewed every year thereafter, unless one party gives the other a written
notice of termination at least three (3) months prior to the anniversary date.

Total management fees earned amounted to £1.8 million in 2017 (2016 — £1.4 million).

As at 31 December 2017, there was no intention from any of the parties to terminate the
management services.
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(d) Advances for various expenses and charges

Other transactions with related parties consist of reimbursements or sharing of common
expenses such as legal, communication and business development expenses.

(¢) Key management personnel

Outstanding balance related to salaries and other employees benefits of key management
personnel amounting to £5.4 million as at December 31, 2017 is presented within accrued
expenses under accounts payable and other current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position (2016 — £0.9 million).

PART IV - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

13 — Corporate Governance

As per SEC Memo Circular No. 20, Series of 2016, publicly-listed companies such as KPH is
required to attach the ‘Consolidated Change in the ACGR for 2016" to their 2016 Annual
Report (SEC Form 17-A): said changes, were submitted to the SEC on 30 May 2017.

As per SEC Memo Circular No. 19, Series of 2016, publicly-listed companies such as KPH is
required to submit a New Manual on Corporate Governance for Publicly Listed Companies.
The Board of Directors approved the New Manual on 16 June 2017. On 10 November 2017,

the New Manual on Corporate Governance was submitted to SEC as revised and approved by
the Board of Directors.

PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES
14 - Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-A
(a) Exhibits — See accompanying Index to Exhibits
(b) Reports on SEC Form 17-C — The Company has filed all reports on Form 17-C (Current

Report) on matters needed in compliance with the SEC’s SRC during the fiscal year 2017
as follows:

25 January 2017 Board of Directors™ approval of KPH's 2016 SEC From 17-A (Annual Report and
Audited Financial Statements (AFS) for the year ended 31 December 2016 and release of
said AFS

25 January 2017 Acceptance of resignation of Enrico L. Cordoba effective 16 December 2017, disclosed
19 December 2016

13 March 2017 Announcement- Resignation of an independent director — Noel M. Mirasol

5 April 2017 Announcement — Resignation of Chairman and member of the Board of Directors —
Chow Yew Yuen as of 31 March 2017

7 April 2017 Election of New Director and Chairman 5§ April 2017

8 May 2017 Result of Board of Directors Meeting — 8 May 2017

e Appointment of External Auditor

* Acceptance of Resignation of a Director — Noel M. Mirasol

¢ Election of Mr. Mayo B. Ongsingco & Atty. Ma. Melva E. Valdez as members of the
Board.

o Seiting of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Record Date

8 May 2017 Notice of Annual Stockholders Meeting and Agenda
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19 June 2017 Result of Board of Directors Meeting - 16 June 2017

s Approval of Directors” Remuneration for 2016

» Declaration of Cash Dividend - declaration of 10% or 20.10 per share cash dividend to
all stockholders of record of the Company as of 3 July 2017 to be paid on or before 27
July 2017

» Approval of the New Manual on Corporate Goyvernance

19 June 2017 Results of the Annual Stockholders Meeting Held on 16 June 2017
» Appointment of External Auditor, Isla Lipana & Co. (PwC) for the financial year 2017
e Election of Directors for year 2017-2016

s Approval of the Corporation’s Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2016
e Approval of Directors’ Annual Remuneration of 860,000 for 2016

19 June 2017 Results of Organizational Meeting — 16 June 2017

e Election of Officers for the ensuing year 2017-2018

o Appointment of chairman, members of the various committees and compliance
officer/corporate information officer

29 June 2017 Submission of the New Manual on Corporate Governance which the Board of Directors
approved in 16 June 2017 pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular No 19 Series of 2016,
otherwise referred to as Code of Corporate Governance for Publicly Listed Companies.

14 September 2017 | Result of Special Meeting of the Board of Directors — 14 September 2017

* Resignation of Ma. Melva E. Valdez and Edmund Mah Soot Khiang as Regular
Directors

o Election of Successors, Alan I. Claveria (Regular Director) and Ramon J. Abejuela
(Independent Director)

¢ Resignation of Stefan Tong Wai Mun as President and Election of Alan I Claveria as
successor for the year 2017-2018.

o Appointment of new Chairman and members of various Committees

24 October 2017 Informed SEC re letter from Securities Transfer Services, Inc. (STSI), the Corporation’s
stock and transfer agent and dividend paying agent, advising the Corporation that STSI is
concluding the Stock Transfer Agreement dated 28 October 2016 effective 30 November

2017.
10 November Result of the Regular Meeting held 10 November 2017
2017/19 e Approval of the New Manual on Corporate Governance (MCG), as revised.
November 2017 e Amendment of By-Laws, particularly Article IV Committees, Section 3, 4, and 5, to be
(amended) consistent with the revisions made to the New MCG.

e  Amendment/Change of Name of Committees & its Members

20 November 2017 | Submission of the New Manual on Corporate Governance, as Revised, approved on 10
November 2017

Upon the written request of the stockholder, the Company undertakes to furnish said
stockholder a copy of SEC Form 17-A free of charge, except for exhibits attached thereto
which shall be charged at cost. Any written request for a copy of SEC Form 17-A shall be
addressed as follows:

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc.
Unit 3-B Country Space 1 Building
133 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Salcedo Village
Barangay Bel-Air, Makati City 1200

Attn: The Corporate Secretary
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation
Code, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Makati on

KEPPEL PHILIPPINES HOLDINGS. INC.

Issuer
By: |%9
Alan L. Claveria Feﬁcm“
President Vice President / Treasurer
-
Ma. Melva. E. Valdez Lor, e P. Manuel-McMullin

Corporate Secretary t Corporate Secretary
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PHILIPPINES

KEPPEL PHILIPPINES HOLDINGS, INC.
Uinit'3-B Counbry Spaca | Building,

Son, OH Puyal Sesne,

Salcedo Village, Makab City,

Philippines . .

Tai: (632) BO21616, BO21HID 1024

Fax! (B32) B520510, BiM3084

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of KEPPEL PHILIPPINES HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES (the
“Company”) 1 responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Grancial statements
including the schedules therein, for the vears ended December 31, 2007 and 2016, in apeordance
with the prescribed financial reporting framework indieated theveln, and for such internal control as
mnagement determines s necessary to enable the preparstion of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether doe to fratd o ermor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for asseasing the Company’s abiliy

o crotinie an{,::mg concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to golng coneern snd using the
going concern besis of accounting unless management either intends 40 Bquidate the Company of 1o
cegse pperutions, or has no realletic alternative but to do so,

The Board of Directars is responsible for oversesing the Company’s financial reporting process,

The Board of Dirdctors reviews and approves the financial statements incloding the schedules
attslved therein and submits the same to the stockholders,

Isln Lipana & Co., the Philippine member firm of PwC, the independent auditor appointed by the

shareholders, hos sudited the financial sttements of the Company in sccardance with Philippines

Standards on Anditing. and bn its report 1o the shareholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness
of presedtation upon completion of such andit

e [ S % L
PAUL TAN POH LEF,
€Chairman of the Board

ALANT. CLAVERIA
President

R
FELICI ViIRATO?
Viee P al/ Treasorer

Signed this o6th day of Janvary zof

A mammber of the Keppel Group, Singapore
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pwc Isla Lipana & Co.

Independent Amlilnr"q Report

To the Bourd of Divectors and Shureholders of

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiarics
Unit 3-8, Country Space 1 Buil
14 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Saleedo Village
Barangay Bel-Alr

Makati City'

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompunying cunsclidated financial statexments present fairly, in all material respeets,
the canstliduted fimsncial position of Keppel Philippioes H Tre. (the “Parent Company”) and its
subssiddiaries (together, the “Group”) asat Decemlber 31, 2017 in o, anid the consolidated financial
performanece ani copsolidated cash fews for the venrs then ended in accardante with Philippine Finpncial
Reporting Standards [(PFRSS).

What e hove oudited
The :_uumudmd financial statemients of the Gronp somprise:

o the consolidased statements of finascial pesition ae 8t December 31, 4017 aud 2016;

e  the cotsolidated statements of income for the yenrs ended December 31, 27 and zo1b;

. thr::d cnnngliqlmd gtatements of total nmpmhuniﬁra_-iunm for the vears ended Docember 51, 2017
and zona;

»  the consalidsted statenents of chanies if squity for the years ended December 31, 2017 il 2o

«  the consolidated statcments of cash Bowes for the years ended December 41, 2017 and 2016; and

. tbeﬁnn'buitn the consehidated fAinanelal stutementd, which fnelude s summary of signifieant aceounting
polictes. '

We canduicted owr sudita in pocardance with Philipgine Standards on Auditing (PEA), i
responsibilities undér those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
af the Financial Statements section of aut report.

W believe that the auditevidenie we have aldalned is sufficient and sppropriate-to provide a hasis for por
afrlnian,

It bigmnar & G, 20k Floae, Phidamilife Tower EET Pased o Rimie, 3328 Mkt iy, Philippin=
T 487 () B45 2705, F+63 1.2) BAS 280, ww wiprwi.com pn

B 18 Ty P i e . g et Pl vapbis s vt R e S, ety o e s e it i E ]
i phees ety i e Sy iy, [P e e S o 2o e sl
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pwcC Isla Lipana & Co.

Independent Auditor's Report

Ter this Board of Direetors and Shireholdersof
Keppel Philippines Holdings, Toe. and Subsidiaries
Page2

Indepernidrmoe

We are indepenident of thi Group in soeardance wwith the Code of Ethics for Professional Areountatits In
the Philippines (Code of Ethics], together with the ethieal requirements that are televant to our audit of
tie financial statements in the Philippines, and we have falfilled our cther ethical responsibilities in
accnrdanoes with these veguirements and the Code of Erhies.

Our Audit Approach

As part of designing our audit, we determined materality and uasessed the risk of materal nasstalement
in the consolidited fimancial statemsents, In particuiar, we epngidered where management made anbjective
fudgments; for example, in respect of stgnificant ascounting estimates that imvulved making assumptions
und considering future events that are inherently nneertain. As inall af wir audits, we plsc sddressed the
risk of munagement pverride of internal pontiols, including amang ether mattors, consideration of

whiether there wis evidence of Hus that represented a risk of materin) misstatement due to fud,

Wi tallared the seapt of our atdit in grder o perform sutlicient work to enahle us to provide nn oploben
o the conpselidated finnncial stntements fs & while, taking inlo sccount thie strocture of the Geoup, the
aecounting processes ond controls, and the indistry in which the Growp aperates.

Key oudit maiters

Key audit matters are thase matlers that. inour professional judgment, were of most stpniflcance in our

audit of the consobdatred finEncial statements of the current period. These mattors were addressed in the

rantext of oar audit of the consolidated finunciol statements as § whole, and in formany Gur opimion
thereon, and we di not provide 4 separate opinion on theae matiers.

The oily key audit matter identified in ouraudit pertains to the assessmont of recterability of investment
propertics,
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Bonrd of Directors and Sharcholders of
Keppel Philippines Holdings, Ine. und Subsidinries
Page 3

Isla Lipana & Co.

Ty Audil Matter

How mur Audit Addressed the Key Andit Matter |

Asspasment of recoverability of investinont
propertns

Refer to Note 7 for the detaile of the Croup's
|ivestment properties and to Note 19.2 {0} for
the disrssinn on critieal necounting judgment.

This is an wrea of focus mainly due to the
nunbar of investment properties held by the
Group. The aocount, which represents 200 af
iotal assets, is part of the Groug's real estate

business segment.

Hepugsions with mansgement did not note any
indisators of impsirment az at December 31

We addressed the matter theough inspection of
significant lomgand ah_urt-{r:m}ima comtragis.
The cbjective of this procedure is to obtain
eomfort over the sustainability of cash flows
from leasing contracts, The inspection
procedures inglnded thorough anderstending of
the terms and conditions of the underlying leass
sontracts as-well as the state of the individual
assets, Our inspection did not note nny
ganeellation or petential cancellation of existing
leqse ngrerments, '

Additionally, we examined thi latest appraisal
veeport prepared by o thied party appeaiser el
noted that the aggregute and individual fae
valyesof the investment properties are Ligher
thun thelr respective cavrying amounts, Comiort
ever the reliability of the sppraidal report was
ohitained through independent verifization of
certain fuir value agsumptions (Le. similar
murket listing in the atea} over the Group's land
Prﬂprrﬁu.ﬂ?lil:h eomipriped approximately 98%
of the total carrying amount of the secount. We
also verified the independence and chmpeiency

of the third-party appraiser.

The results of provedures and

2017,
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Independent Anditot’s Repor
T'a thie Board of Divectors and Shareholdens of
Eeppel Philippines Holdings, Ine. and Sub=idiiries

Poge 4

Other Information

Munagemen| is responsitie for the other informatio, The ather informption comprises the information
tclnded in the SEC Form 20-15 (Defmitive Information Statement), and SEC Form 17-A for the year
ended December 34, 2017, but do not inelude the consolidated financial statements and pur auditor's
report thereon, The SEC Form 20-15 { Definitive Information Statement), and SEC Farm t7-A are
expected to be made avatiable 1o is after the date of this awditar's report.

Our apirlanon the consolidated financinl statements dioes not cover the ather ttformation and we will not
express any furm of assyrance eonclusion therean.

n conmection with our sudits of the eendntidated financinl statements, our responsibility 18 1o read the
pther information identified shove whan it becomes availnble and, in doing so, consider whethet the other
information is materially incopststent with the consolidated finaneink stutements or oo knowledge
abtatned in the sudit, urotherwise appears o be materially milsgtated. '

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governaned for the Financial
Statemmenis

Management |3 respunsible for ;g;gﬂpm-md:m.wﬂmmh of the gonsalidated firaneial
statemnents [n socardance with &, and for sach isternal control &5 monagement determnes is
neceasary to enable the prepration of comanlidatod Gnineial safements that are free from material
micstmtement, whether due 1o fraud ot etor.

[n preparing the consolidated finuncls! statements, manigement is responsible for assessing the ability of
ech entity within the Group to continue as.0 going concern, disclosing, a5 applicable, matters related to
going concerm and using the geing congern basis of iprounttng unless manngement either intends to
intiidate the entity or to tease bperations, or has no renlistic alternative but to o so,

Thise chirged with govermimoe are responsible for pverseeing the Group's finaticial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjgctivesaro obtain reasonable aseurinee about whether the consctidated Brancial staloments o
a whale are free from material missthtement, whether due to frand of error, atid T fssue an anditor's
repart that includes ouropinion. Ressonable aasarance i o high lovel of assuranee, but i= oot 4 guarantee
that an sudit conducted in acoordanoe with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement wher it exista.
Misstutements can arise from fraud or epror-and wre mﬁ#ﬁmd material i, individually or in the
agpregute, they could reasonably be experted to influence the ecantmis declsions of users taken on the
hasie of these consolidated financial statemnents
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Independent Auditors Report
To the Roard of Directorys and Sharchiolder= o
Keppel Philippines Holdings, Ine. and Sobsidisries
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As part of sn andit i seeordance with FSAS, we exervise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticlzm throughiout the andit. We also

o identify and aesess the risks of materis] misttement of the tonsclidated fGnoncial statgments,
whether due to frand or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
ohtpin audit evidense thit s sufficient and appropriste (o provide n bagis for our oplidon, The risk of
not detecting & matevial misstytement resulting from fravd is higher than for ane resulting from eror,
as fraud muy inyolve eollusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresontations; orthe override of
internal control,

«  Obtiin an upderstanding of internal control relevant to the mdit in order to design audit procedures
that are apprapriate in the elreumstances, hut not for the pirpose of expressing an opinion ot the
slfertiveness of the Group's internat contral,

e Evatuile the appropristenessof aecounting policies used pnd the reasonabiensss of aecounting
estimaties und related disclosares made by management.

¢ Conclude o the sppropristeness of monagoment's use of the golng concemn basis of accounting and,
bsed on the audit evidente obtaimed, whether o material uncertuinty exists related to events or
conditinns that mav cust slgnificant doubt on the ability of eoch entity within the Group 10 continue &3
a going concern [f we conclude that n material uncertainty exists, we are required fo draw attention
I our anditor's tepart 1 the refated disclosures in the consolidated financial statements of, if such
disclosnres are inadequate, to modify our opinfon. Our oonclusions are bised on the sudit evidence
obitained up to the date of our suditar’s report. Hewever, futore events or conditions may cavsean
entity within the Group to cense 1o contintie a8 a going concern.

»  Fvatuate the overall presentatins; structure and content of the consolidated finanrial statements,
ineluding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the pnderiving
transsetiond and events in o manner thil achlevey Rl presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governanee regarding, amony other matters, the planned seope
and thming of thi audit and significunt audit findings, incloding any-significant deficienaies i inteenal
gemtrol that we identify during onr audit.

Wealso provide thass charged with governanee with o statement that wie hivve complisd with relevant
ethica] requirements regarding independence; and to communicate with them all relationghips and other
matters that may teasphably be theught to bear on dur independence, and where applicable, reluted
safegunrds.
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Independint Auditor's Repart .
T the Board of Directors snd Shareholders of
Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Suteidinnies

Page 6

From the matters tommunicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of moet significance in the sudit of the constlidated Francial statements of the parrent perind and
ave therefore the key nudit matters. Wedesoribe these matters in owr auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes publie disclosure ahout the matter e when; in extrgmely rare ciromuianees, we
Jetermine that o matter shotld not be communicated in our report because the atlverse eonsequences of
doing so wold reasonabily he expeted to outweigh the publie interest benefits of such commumcation,

Other Maller
The eoneatidated finaneial statementy 358t snd for the yeur ended December 13, 2015 were audited by

another auditor whose report thereon dated Janbary 28, ey, expressed an unmogdified opliion on those
stutements. Our opinion i npt qualified in respect of tis matter,

The egangement partner on this gudit resalting in thi= independent anditor's report is Roderick M. Banan,

‘et Mo, BR4ys53 )

PR, Mo, so11aBo, seued on January 10, 2038, Mkt City

SFC AN, (individual) ns generalanditors 3585-A, Cotegory A; effective umtil Spptember 27, 2019
SEC AN, (firm) as general suditors 0o0g-FR-q; Category A; effective until July 15 2018

TIN 152-D15-078

BIR AN, 0B-000745-42-2015, issued on January 39, 2015 effective untl Jonuary 28, 2018
BOAJPRC Reg. No, orqe, effective until Scplember 50, 2020

Mukath Ciry
dumunry ab, 2018
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Statemenis Requinud by Kule 68,
Securities Regulation Code (SRC).
Ay Amgpded on Cefoler 30 2011

Tis the Board of Directors and Shareholders o

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Ine. and Sobsidiaries
Unit 3-8, Country Space 1 18

1593 5en. Gil Puyat Avense, Saleedo Village

Barangay Bel-Air

Mudats City

Wi hiave sudited the conaclidatod [inancisl statements of Keppel Philippines Halifings, Tne. and
Subeidiaries as at and dor the vear ended Dectmbrer 41, 2017, on which we have rendared the pitached
ripart dated January 26, 2018, The supplementary information shows in the Schedule of Philippine
Financial Reporting Standanis and Interpretations effective wxat December 31, 2007, Reconcilintion of
Retuined Farmitgs for Dividend Declaration, Map of the Group of Companies within which the
Reporting Entity Belongs, and Key Financial Ratiod as required by Part 1, Section 4 of Bule 68 of the
SR, and Sehedules A, B, C, D, E, F, G, and H as required by Part 11, Section & of Ruli 68 of the SRE,
are presepted for purposes of filing with the Emirtl:ﬁaﬁ&nﬂ Exchange Commission and are not required
parts of the basic consalidated fnancial statements. Such supplementary Informuation s the
responsibility of mEndgement and huve beea subjected o the suditing procedures applied in the audis
of the basic consolidated financiil statements. Th our opmion, the supplementary information e
heen prepared in accordance with Prots | and 17 of Rule 68 of the SR

Mo, BH453

BT No ooui280, issued on Janusry 1o, 3018, Mekati City -

SECACN. (Individual} as genem] auditors 15854, Colupery A effeetive untll Beptomber .oz, snig
SEC AN, (firm) as generil auditors ooog-FR-4; Category A; effective until July 15, 2018

TIN 152-015-078 .

BIR AN, 0B-000745-42-3015, Iesued o January 26, 2015 affective untl January 28, 2mé
HOA/PRC Reg. No, 0142, effective until September 30, 2020

Makti City
Jamuary 26, 2018
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Keppel Philippines Holdings, Ine. and Subsi

Consalidited Statements of Flnancial Pasitis

Ay it Desember 91, 2ot 7 and 2016

ES a8 kRN T aswri

iy Exc e rsgoe
Cerrrsrrmilmnlcaes

= e b O T e [ TP [

AFR 12 20W--

-

|
STy

{ Al amounts in Philippine Peso) r.r-- ———
FEIHE ah b LD s J
Motas 20117 20186
ASSETS
Current assets
Cashgnd gaah equivelents z g, Baa B 24316 62
Receivables, nat 3 209 278624 7337 306 644
Other current asssts, nal d 742 996 111,025
Total currenl assets 207 266548 256,733,841
Non-current assets
Avaiabie-for-sale Nnarcial Bssels; nt B 20,000, 0 148 500,004
investmant in-associates 8 420 435 364 415,185,322
Laaf receivebles, nat af curment poman 3 57 500,000 87,600,000
Lease recejvables: net of curtant portion 3 28.234 677 33,855 968
Investrment properties, net 7 205,001 540 209,521 AR
Praperly and equipmeant, net a 134 BB 3618
Cihear non-curren; asselis ¥ 4.140.710 4140,710
Total nan-cument assets: 717,347 382 TEE, 735,025
Total aunaty 1015,313,830 1006471887
IES AN
Gurrent fiabllitios
Agcaunts payable snd other current labilties g 8,078,874 355924
Rafundabie deposits 7 A8T.0E0 L
incume fax payabls: 14 1.083.310 494,962
Total aurren labilites 9608204 4,998,432
Non-current labilities
Advance rentals 7 - B4t 267
Refuridable depasits T . 1124600
Defeerad incoma tax Ii!gii'rl;y 14 1,484 418 1,737 892
Total non-curenl habililies 14348 418 4,703 758
Tatal liabiities 11103872 820181
Equity ) .
 Share capital 11 73,173 500 73173500
Share premam 11 73,203,734 73203734
Retained earnings 12 477,219,623 438,203,772
Imvestment revaluation reserve g5 18,422 058 18922 08
Treasury shares 12 (£2.822 978) {22 B22.978)
520,386,835 580 880,088
Non-contralling inigrests 20 QB3 A14 468 438 971 678
Total equity 1004 210,308 1,047.851.866
Total llabilities and eguity 1,0718,313.830 1,025.471 857

Thie notes on pages 1 to 46 ofe integral part of these consalidated fnandial stytemenls.

sk




Keppel Philippines Holdings; Ine. and Subsidiaries

Comsolidated Statements of [ooome

For the yeirs eiided] December 31, 2017 0ind 2016
(With comparative figures for the vear ended Diecember 11, poi5)
CAIL pmemmts m Philippine Pesn)

Notes 2017 2018 2015
‘Revenue and income o
Gain an sale of Investment properties ) A48 550165
Rentl Income 7,10 17,9508 009 20,451,328 18,420,102
Interest income 210 12 486,267 10,628,578 0,583,182
Equity in niet sarmmas of gssocales # 8,742 380 10,314,778 14,788 202
Management fees 10 1. PB0.200 1,394,400 1,200,400
Dividend income B 10 - 1,622 168
Othars £083 704 28T e 1.287 567
91,231,525 44858 567 46285033
Diperating exgenses 13 (23.577624) (V8728.580)  (14,T18.7BS)
Income before Income tax 67,653,401 27841977 31 549284
income tax axpenss 14 (12.781,217) (4, 182.377) (4647, zuri )
Mot incorma Tor the year 54 573 584 23 758 BOD 26,822 047
Attributable to:
Equity holders. of the parant 15 44 708,003 13,568 566 13,170,428
Mon-controfling imeresis 16 076581 10181034 13,751 858
54 872004 23,759,800 24922047
Earnings per share attributable to
equity holders of the parent 15 0.775 0.235 0298

The notes on pages 1 Lo 46 are integesl part of these consolidated finpnelal statements,



Keppel Philippines l-lulrll.ng_s,.lm:. and Subsidiaries
Consolldnted Statementa of Total Comprehensive Income

For the years ended December 33, 20317 and 2016

(With comparative figares for the year etded December 31, 20:5)
LAl ampunts in Phillippine Peso)

Note 2017 2016 2015
Met income for the yoar 54 B72.5884 Z3TEREOD 2R.822047
Ciher comprehensive income
Item that may be subsequently reclassmed fo
prafit or loss
Unrealzed fair value gain on svalable-for-gale
Tinanfial asssls o’ £00 Q00 2,708, 0 B0, 300
Total comprehensive income for the yoar 55372684 27459600 27722047
Attributable to:
Equity holders af the parenl 45 766,083 17288588 13570428
Mor-cantroling interest 10.078.681 10191034 157516818
55372884 27458800 27.722.047

THE NOTE: O PARER 1 10 46 are miegral part of these cotsafidansd financisl saements.




WUSBLA|ES [FIAUTTH] [ epueTsE asat]) o predd |eldaguy ado b o) 1 saged oo sgio ay),

G35 LGALL0'L B40T|iE'0Er. BUN0RADES [BLGETVET Ge'zzAEL  ZLUEOERDP WEOEDETL  DOS'ELLEL §10K 'LE SRquIaTN I8 SRIuRg
esEIVED]  (OO0ESHE)  (OWIBSRL)  WALFELTE - TR e : IR M. BUCHIESUEL (0
1V o R (Bl vZeTy)  lesovELEl) - + - = RAUE |0 BEBYDINdiY
ferroagos) looo'psued (wlomoml - . Ewiopae - i PRHELDED SpUIRA YSED)
MO LA WO IESUEL ]
podRSKiZ  pEDLEL0N  GERBZLL Goo'o0LE ooSREGEL - e
) SEOoU BarEUEYaItund (B ]
OOY00LE 000'00L'E = 0OG'00L'C - > - & UEEE (BEELI GBS0y F|RienE
Lig WedE SHTEA B DED R
oosEELEE  WEOUEMOE  eSEedRL - - pocpogTL - - sk B o) T AN
FUB0IL] HA SN D
09 DR R PhOVFOEY LOOTIEZR (BAVEERE]  ESOTIESL BRBLJOO0EF  PUOEDEED  OOEIVEL GLOT 'L§ SOCHEEIE] 1F SROUETE
(vazvrw) (podgoz)  Gwpverd - . {EwiaEosl - - 2z pRAraR SPUSHIAD LS
UMD 1A L3 DESLTEL
ip0'zEiiEE BABUSEEL  GEROSEL - Y T30 RZPOLLDE eaf
B 10 BUIonL SasuEgRidiLT [
000" 00 OO0 ong: . 00 08 = - - LI GAEUSYyIdUET SR
ipliEmer . REEEEEL CBIVOELEL - . : 1 TR o ‘ - iBEh FU) |n) SO0 B
BLLCFIIE SAp Y asdn g
PR oon'L CIWEREOCY  WiCREWss  (QURERAE BROTIREE IoCBENEdy  PEATOLEL  DONELLEL gi0z | BTRE | S0IUEER
Aytiba ysalU) (LT {4 mon) {5 s10N) Igy m1oN) wnpmasd (L4 @R s
el Bupjonuos EaUELE ERVEE SEUUIES aikyg jepdes
-oH Aangraiy DORETHEAS  pRUTEMTY g
RIETTLER

puaded s po simppoy Anba o mEEngunY

. (e aupdddyiy g Wy STEmowe [y
(500 < Jpquuaaag] papue JERL 241 10f samiEy aspueduos guAd |
qUoT pue L107 *1E Taruikia(] pagHie ATREA SR b
iyt Ul saSuTg) J0 FIBEALES PAEPTRID

sapmpsgng pie -su) FRupppop seoyddyngg pdday




HUALA LY (o papepjoEto asat go ed (i oo of o1 1 saiivd wo o g,

ROTULZ P00t SOy viOTHE  BEOSGUOMe (METROZY  ROTORAL  EAEEICAY  VEOTOZEE  DOS'CLLCr LHOZ 'LE dequuaseg i seiukeg
(erowinss) (poctrzed) (zecogsy - TR T . -l DRIE|DED SPUEPIME USTD
SDALMLD LA LR TESU |
YOOZICDS ISEBI0L  ROOGRISY - 000 DS TS0 UEL Y - - o puy
o S AR
no0 ‘oG - Boa'neg - o0 D - - . A
i thilh BN|EA JIEf REDEEIN
FPERZISYS SSWOTL EEeslWr - . £50'96L i . sl ] 30y MU0 16
EETTT R TF TR RNV E TR T
DOEIGHL ) RIGLBIKY  GROURRDRS (0iFSZO T wR0EZE9L  ASCDCNCE  PLCITOSEL  DRSEALRL 9102 ‘4L 1squiadag e saauweg
Apnba sEaek oy (zi ®moMd {5 3ioH) {23 #ow) wepnand (g4 sonl  mon
e Bujentes P pasaBay Shumues  wieus e :
Uy Aibisag LHOENfEAR]  PAUPEIEH BB -
{usus AL

.... amra

(ovagf gy gy sy [y
(SroE “1E Jaiagac] pepia 1uak an oy seansy sarpeiedwod [}
QLG puE LT0E T8 Janmasayg] papus stead sty 10
Annbg urEaiunyD Jo MuAEN G PAERHOg00s

saRipIsgng pue au) ‘sdurpjop saunddipngg adday



Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. nnd Subsidinries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Far the years ended Degember 33, 2017 and 2016

(With comparative fignres for the year ended December 51, 2005)

(Al amounts in Philipplne Peso)
Males ik it 2015
Canh Migws from operating activities
irzarme bafsrm miafTe f=x £7.803.801 27 B T 1% GO0 248
Adjunimanta for
Frowssinn for (secpvary of | impairmen! lossms & 8 13 B0, 74d 135,853 (1,485,259
Bepres|ation and amsization T, 8 in 0553 12558 £43 291
Dividard incoma 4.0 1 {1,633 168] .
Equily n nel earmissy of aascainies §,.10 (6,743, 350) (18314 TTE) (14,788, 32)
irieresl incorms 2,3 10 |12 458 2T {10,538 BF0) (8593 180
Gain ot ese ol ifvesimen propeits= T (40, BRI, 1ER) . .
Dparatmg inpome pefoie woning capial changes 2,743,511} 5524, 650 B, T4E, 530
Chisrges m wesking caplis
Aot eses 1,48 285 00420 284,280
CRhEr CUTTRA FESETE _ {2,570, 034) 2028650 (2:245.000)
Aty payable =nd ather eurran] kniitios 0,585 318 1 043560 [B0e 0
fEetundable-Gepoaim 11 A5 T50) ELO0EZ FLEEs
Met cash ganergied rom ooeralons 19, 168,703) 5,586 103 3,008 546
IFrcsrrve fax pled (10,265,059) {1,206 801 {1 AESHT)
Ml zash mmﬁ} (used in) dparstng actvites I1'l_dE.|'__1GE'I a4.961 122 1541 BiG
Cash Mows from biwesting activities )
Gelaston of isan recanatis fmm a netaied pary 3 FTSIDOGD 4T 345000 43,560,000
Proceeds foem gala of invéstmant properies ER - 8- . =
Imeresd recehed. 17842 5E 10245 345 &8.31T.600
Canh dlvisands receled 6 10 3,453,239 12,725,080 18161 907
Ataintion of propery and aquipmant 2 {128, 759) 34 E21) -
Logne granled io:a relalsd party A9 (1825000001 - {1TE046,000)  (131,000.000)
Hes canf provided by [used ) irmeaing actiies T4, 100 171 {6,552 TEE) (60,020,4%3)
Cush Neows from financing activities
Cmh grvidends peis i (58 0, Qi 15, o, TAT) l|1l.E-ﬂE_.'Elﬂl
Bepurchase if srares 12 . {82724, 780) :
higl cash used In inancag sovibes (B5.014.043)  [FR 415800 R s
Net increaes (docreane] in cash pod cirsh equiveients B3, 6T 7T {20, M_T-_Emj {7751 280)
Ciaih ardd cesh eguivaldnts & Jahuary | a4 316 182 55 423 375 42T a8 818
Cash und cash equivalenin st December 11 67 B3 @0 24318 152 55,9 11475

The notes on pages 1 1o 46 areintegral part of these consolidated financial statoments.




Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financin] Statéments

As at and for the yesrs ended December 21, 2017 and 2016

(With comparative figures for the vear ended December g1, 2015)

(1 the notes, sl amounts are shown Philippine Peso unless otherwise stated)

Note 1 - General information

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Ine. (EPHT of the Parent Company'} and s subsidiaries, ¥PST Property,
Ing. {KPE1), and Goodwealth Realy and Development Corparation (GRDC), ingluding GRDC's
sibsidiary, Goodsntl Marine Realty Ine. (GMRI), collectively referred 1o as "the Group®, were
incipporated in the Philippines: The Parent Compnany wos registered with the Phllrppm: Sectrities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) on July 24, 1975 with registered office address at Unit 3-8, Country
Space 1 Building, 133 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Saleedda Village, Barnngay Bel-Air, Makati City. The
Purent Company = invelved in imvestment holding while the subsidiicies are in the real estare industry,

EPHT's shares -nr:'rm‘ ey truded in the Phifippine Stock Exchange (PSE), As ot Deoember 31, the top

three {3) shareholders are the following:
Fﬂmurri'ﬂgn of ownership
2017 216
Kaipwmalth, ng, 82 8% 52.8%
#eppel Corporatean Limted (KCL) 25 e
Pubis 18.0% 18.0%%

The folipwing are the Picent Company's subsidiaries which afl helong 1o the real estate industry:

Parcentage of own
2017 2018
ARk 100% M0
GROC SR 51
EMHI ﬂﬂ'ni 1%

GROC is 44% owned by Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. Retirement Plan (KPM1 Reticoment Ml and
5% by Keppel Phﬂippm Marine, .T.m: {E‘t".'."-!ll} in 2017 and covh, GRDC owns g3.7% of GMRI, thus,
EPHT has 51% effective ownership on GMRL including 3.2'% separate interest in GBRIL

MR has 25 direct ownership in CLI, providing KPHT a13% indirect ownership in CLIL

All of the Group's associates were meorporated in the Philippines. The ultimate parent company of the,
Group is Keppel Corporation Limited (KCL), 2 company incorporated in Singapore. KCL is listed in the
Singnpore Exchange {SGX)

The Parent Company has 7 regular employees ns at December 51, 2057 (2016 - 5 emplovees), The
ndministrotive fanetions of the subsidisries are hundled by the Parent Company's mansgement,

As at December 31, 2017, the Parent Company has 242 shareholders (2006 - 247 shareholders?, each
cwmimg at least 100 shares,

The socompanying comsolidated finanelal stitéments have been approved and authoriged for ismanee
Iy the Board of ;ﬁeclnn (BOD) oy January 26, 2018,



. o "

Csh and cash equivalents as st December 31 consist of;

Ty 2018
Cash equivalents: A2 220,201 20,758,883
Cash in banks B, 74, rza 3551178
Eash an hand 5,000 5000

B7 B4 528 24 316 182

Cixh in banks earn {nterests nt the prevalling bank de
investments which aro placed in financial fnstitutions
depending on the Immediate cash reguirements of the Group,

ranges from 1,680 to 2.0% in 2017 (2015 - 14N ta 1.6%),

Intereet income on citsh and cash eguival
4015 - PL6 million). Accruedinterest rec

posit rates. Cash equrivalents are short-term
for virving periods of up to three (3] months,
ani earned intecest ot annual rates thal

ents amounted to Po.g million n 2017 (w06 - Fo.b million;

o | mithion as §t December 31, 2057 (2016 - Po,o2 milllon] (Note 3).

etvible from cash and eash equivalents amounted 1o

Note 3 - Receivables. net
Receivables; net as ot December 31 corsist ol:
Notes. 2017 2014
Loars recelvabie from a reigied paity 10 242,000,000 317,000,000
Lease roceivables:
Retated paries "0 3231722 34,581 08B
Cithers T0T.493 408 355
275630216 352 309 441
Won-trada 2162580 2,152 860
intecest recenable 2.10 B28.454 1205133
Due from relaled parties 10 = 58,058
_ 278.620,248 355815213
Legs non-curtent portion:
L.oane recanvable 10 37 500,000 87,500,000
Leage receivables 20234 677 33865980
£8,734 877 121,355 386
271,886,672 134,450,224
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 2 605,948 2,152 580
209,279,624 230 306644
Mavemetits in the allowance for impalrment related to lesse recelvables - others and non-trade
receivables for the years ended December 31 follows:
20T 2016
LEgsE Lages
Fcalvaos - racesyabies «
Hate aNerE Nar-rade T atrars Min-frads Tetal
Tanuary 1 . 2152580  4.162560 - 7152580 2152580
Provisicn 13 453 388 . = A% 068 - -
Bcember 31 AE3368  IVEIEAD 2505548 BEEED 282580




The Parent Company recognized provision for doubtful accounts related 10 its third party receiwables
amounting to Po.s milliva for the year énded December 31 2007 (2016-nil). These pocounts pertain
to terminated lease contracts with third party costomers that have history of defaults,

The loans reeeivable from a related party pertaln to onsecured, short-teem and |bog-term intereat-
bearing loans obtained by Keppel Philippines Morine, Ine. (EPMT), an entity under common control,
from the Parent Company, GMRI and EPSI. Refer to Note 10 for the detnils of the loans recelvable,

Carrent portion of the lease recelvables and due from related parties are noo-interest hearing ond are
genernlly with terma of go-60 davd: The non-curtent porHon of the ledse reeebvables pertaing to the
difference in the enleulation of reit income using stralght-line methol, These amounts are expected 1o
reversis more than ooe (1) year from the financial reporting date.

Non-trude receivable represents the Group's claim againsta seller of o paree] of lend, the title of which
has not been transterred to the Group, The non-trade receivable has been uuuumd.lng for more than
two (2] years nnd has been fully provided for.

Interest receivabl represents the Group's scerped interest eamed from cash and cash equivalents and
lgans recebmble,

Due from related parties representing teceivables relating, to retmbarsement of expenses, is'non-
interest bearing and {s due nnd demandable,

Other eurrent assets, net ks ot December 51 consist of:

2017 2018

Creditable winhoiding tax (CYWT) ZB10.307 2032442
Inpul valus-added tax (VAT 777408 1,268 275
Advances to employess 480,000 .
Deposits 56,845 80,6456
Frepaid expenses 2,10 =
Dihers BO,738 7180
4,108,289 3,388,542

_Less allowancs for impairmant Iosses 3453204 3257517
742 BEL 111,025

Movements in the sllowance for impairment reluted to input VAT and CWT for the years ended
December 53 follows:!

a"E'Er T o
“E.r-lluf

Fce WHT _Taml_ Inpul WAT - Tami in
January | 5 :un: 5097557 - 1 pan 3 i ) ;
Frivsen }%%J 113 t"ﬁ!ﬂ'_ﬁ_"-ﬂ'
sy of i nm m: %r B4ty p.m%} (TEEOAE (18 MS; %THFJ ﬁ-“ W'“ ".":.;'.F_,L E?.ﬂ.-'ﬁ.d
W preieon jacoary] 13 i, I-?n-:l '-"-!-EI.!-!-:I i+ :|4|.;- {4,708 77

ol - s peen 0 -
{inc=—nar 11 Bz onT S 410, qs.**u T T T e T FFIII e

o aai7, the Group recovered Input VAT and CWT amounting te Po.g milllon and Po.g million,

mmm? {2016~ Po.8 million apd Po.x million, respeetivaly) and soch were Elirpl:lnd agiEinst outpot
VAT angl income tax dus, respectively, during the yeasr,

(4}




Note 5 - Avoiloble-for-sale finangial assets, net
avnilahle-for-sale finmneinl assels, net as at December 31 congist of:

2017 2016
Cuoted shara, al fair valle
Golt club share {with cest of P318,004) 20,000,001 19/600.001
Unguoted share, al cost
Gall club share’ BE0,000 BED,000
20,880.001 20,380,001
Less allowsnce for impaimment loss 880,000 880,000

20000,001 18,500,001

The above investments represent propristary club shares that provide the Group with opportunities for
return through dividend income and trading galns. These do not have fioued mustunty oF coupon rate
and the movement Is based on closing market prices obtalned in an-active marker.

Thie movoment in the svailable-for-zate finaneial nesets for the years ended December 33 s as follows:

20%7 2018
Saruary 1 189,500,007 15,800,007
Fair value gan 500,000 3,700,000
December 31 20000,001 19,500,001

Thi mivement of fnvestment revaliation reaerve for the yeirs ended Deceember. s i shown below:

207 2018
January 1 18.022.058 15,222 068
Fair valug gain 500,000 3,704,000
December 31 16 4p0 068 18522058

The Group recogiied fair vilue gain amounting to Po.8 million in 205

[nvestment in associates as at December 31 ootaisr of

L, o7 O01E
Investmen! in pssoviaies: 337 506 BO0  B42 048406
{mpaimment - (908 351,585)

337565 800 337,500,800

AccumuiBied share in net Income

Balarge &t January 1 77.680.523  (426,973.437)
Equity in net earnings of associales. B742280 10314776
Cash dividena receivid (3453238 (11,103,512
|mpairment ' - 505 351,688

B2.B3B.584 77 586,583
490455 384 415,186,323

(4)




Details of the investment [n ssuocintes aceounted for under the equity method as of Dedembser 51 ore
shown below:

L= 4wl =k Toln!
&l g | .'II'ITE i ngi 1] ST ﬁ'lﬁ =T hbd |
lammimems - T3 A8 B2 . oy, B00:A% wuT 8l RO 237 hiwd MDD 337 S5 800 B2 ban bl
_impmrTm| LATREE TRl - SV AS AN + - - SONERGREI
- = 5T B Adn LR ] LT SR ROD
Aol fhas
in nek e@rnings
\CERBE)
Basiring 4t
Jdieanry ! ﬂ]‘]_” I_Pl?ﬁ rﬂ: T, R3S 5T T BB ADT 378280 Tr.BER6E] {424 BTE8T7)
Eciumy i riwi
HEIFICEN
Jiirmpe} iof
BEETET T - : 0,743,000 L[=E R0 N k] ] 19314 7T
Shet drailang .
manies® - - - 19,483,538 i AE3 eS| [ a0a| 11 103 5T
Foarmer SraATe A 220 kI 14 : . Lo a6 Bl

- WIRJRFAA  TTEERRIN BZEIEESE 77 ERWNDY
z % E agg qgn-'_'a-' di8 \bE AT Lmaaniss  s1siennm

In 26, the Group bas written-off its investments in KPCHand GV! amounting to Pgog.q million. The
write-off did not impart the net ass=ts, results of operationd, and cash flows as theas investments are
fullv provided for as at December 31, 2015

.1 Associales
laj €Ll

LR swns 24.95% nvestment or 17,466,106 shares out of 70,000,000 shares in Copsarl Land, Ine.
[CLTY, a eompany ineorporated in the Philippines, as at December 31, sorramd 5016,

KEMT has a Share Purchase Agreement with the Company for the transfer of 2,050,000 shares dated
September 6, 2010, As at Janunty 26, 2018, the pgreomony is still swniting the iasnunce of Tax
Dlesrance before the actual tronsfer of shares, However, the Compony s alrendy exerdising 24.95%
beneficial ownezship to CLL

GMEI received cash dividend from CLT in 2017 amounting to P3.5 millien {2016 - Pros million:
o015 - PI7.5 millinh).

) GV

GY1,0m entity involved in investment holding with the same principal place of husinesy as EPFL,
inourred continued Jossis, O June 19, 2008, GVTs BOD approved the digsalotion and the:
amendment of the Articles of Incormporation te shirten GVT's corporate existence, GV filed notices Lo
the SEC and Bureau of Internol Revenve (BIR) on July 22,2013 and July 31, 2013, respectively. The
BIR iwsned tax clearance on May 27, 2005 and the SEC approved the shortening of corporate term on
November 3, 2013, In 2u15; the Group recogmized provision fni--impﬂfﬂmnlt on its investment in GY1
amounting to Po.2 million since the management belisves that the balance in the investment will oot
he recovered (Note13).

Oin August 13, 2015, GVI declured dividends amounting to Po.8 millipn based un it retained earnings
ak ot July 31, 2015 10 1ts sharcholders per record as at August 31, 2015, The Group received

Po.7 n in September nous. On December 5, 2016, in the joint meeting of GVI's sharcholders and
the BOD), the distribution of GVT's remaining investment in Keppel IVI Capital Inc, (KICT) and cash of
Pz.o million were approved. The Group received P16 million from GV as bguidating drvidend,

(5}




fe) KPCT

KPCL an entity involved in investment holding with the same principa] place uf business as KPHI,
incurred continued losses and was in 4 liguidating position sinee'so0z,.

O June @2, 2o1, KPCCs BOD spproved the dissalution and the amendmént of the Articles of
Incorperation to shorten KPCES eorpornte existence. KPC filed notives to the SEC and BIRan
July 25, 2011 and September 14; 2011, respectively. On March 8, soih, EPCI obtiined tax cleardinoe
from the BUR and on July 95, 2016, the SEC approved the amendment of the Articles of Inaoeporstbon
to shorten KPCHs corporate existence and correspandingly issued a cenificate af dissalution,

6.2 Financial information of associntes
The finaneial information of CLT as ot and for the years ended December as are as follows:

2017 2018

Currer| assets 6,880 495 50,887,520
Non-gurrent assets: 256461824 250,100,163
Total assels. 333,351,823 309987683
Current liabilivs 25,647 295 23.252.178
Nan-current liabililes . -
Tota libilities 35847305 23752178
Net assets 307,704 628 286.735.503
Revenus 162707207 148208191
Income before incame tax 37,699,578 44 218 372
Gther comprehensive incoma _ - .
Tedal comprehensive ingome 34 669123 41255105

vl and KPCT bad no assets, labiities, and equity o atand for the years endesd December 31, 2017 and
st following their dissolition.

In 017, the Group has 13% or P40.0 milllon share in el asset (stuted at cost) of CLE (o016 - 213% o7
Py7.q million),

The difference between the share in not asset and canying amount af the nvestment amounting to
p4ni.4 million pertaing (o (i value ndjustments on prime Lang holdings of CL1 (2016 - carrying
pmonnt of P415.2 million). '

Thers are na slgnificant restrictions on the shility of the associates to transfer funds to the Grougp i the
firrm of cash dividends or to repay loans ot idvanees made by the Group.

Thers are no contingent linhilithes rekting to the Group's inyestment in associales.

o)



Note = - Investment properties, net

TIT detaite and movements of investment properties as at und for the years endded December 31 are ol
follws:

Building and . CondamEnium

Hote Lama  mprovements Lnits Teds
2017
Cost |
Janusry 1 205,901 938 2,608,001 7h342885  233@s3E0
Disipasal (235,500} (17542501 216536110 (J3B43387)
Decembar 31 208, 566 439 Btd 751 3HA0,178  210.210,368
-’-E.D_J!‘HLME drprecalion mid
amartization
Jameary. 1 - 2135824 32 108 81T 24332141
Deprocialion and amotidation 13 - Al B3 235 575 284 GER
Disposal = (1,565257)  (18723444) (30,308 871)
Dpcembar 1 : E15.260 3045178 4.3U§,ﬁ‘_§;
Mgt book valies 205 BE8 424 235,501 - 205 801 540
F18 '
Ton
Januacy 1 and Decerriber 31 205, 601 /630 2 BO@,001 25,342 6BY 233853520
Agcumiizied depreciation and
amodization
Janury 1 - 2026481 21 813448 23,828 829
Degrociation and amarzation 13 - 110,033 283,188 353,202
Digcember 31 I . 2135, 524 22 188 817 24,333 141
_Nal book vaises 255 207 539 478477 9148072 200521468

Dhuring 2017, the Groupsold certain land, building and improvements, and condominium tmits with
carrying valoes of Po,2 million, Po.2 million, and P29 milllon, respectively, for o total considaration of
P52 o million resilting in o gain oo sale amounting 1o P49.6 million,

Land, builiding and fmprovements in Satangas ase leased out 10 related parties (Note 10), while
eondomimium units gre leased ont o thind parties.

The investment properties have un aggregate fair vitloe of Pog4.0 millicn based on-an apprawal made
by un sccredited independent appraiser on November 17, 2017 (2016 - Py24.4 millian). The fair value
oif the Investment properties was determined using Livel 3 inputs wuch-as dingpunt rates, ferminal
vields, expocted vacapcy mtes and rantal geowth rutes ug estimated by the independent AppTRiser or
management hosed on comparable transactions and inchustry data,

Hentil irichme sttrfbutable to the investment properties for the years ended Dévemhber 31 ennsists of
the following;.

Hole 20172018 2016
Related parties 90 1386ID062  13677,008 13574529
Third parties 4,336,847 8774301 BB4T7.273

17 BBE008 204581326 18,420,102
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Tetails of the advance rentals and refundable deposits received from related and third patty customers
as at December 43 are a8 follows:

20T 2018
Halalad Rednted.
parfies  Third pertes Third
. Notg (WMot 10) parbes Tota {Note 100 EaTties Totat
Aduance renias ]
" Gurrant 232 958 . gigess  Z0IGRE  4B4ATR TIT.AN4
Non-oimerl T - - - B412EY 841267
g _‘_m,ﬂﬁﬂ 232 866 237058 1,336,745 1,588,700
Aplundable deposits )
Cuirren 232 058 F54124 457080 232,856 seE2e3. RI2 I
Mein-EuTent o - - 1 24800 1,124800
“ 232958954124 43060 23agse 1722883 146 MIB
The operiting expenises direetiy attributable to the mvestment properties pertiining depreciation
and amortization and real estate taxes amounted to P45 millian in dorr (earband 2015 - P47
milllen},

MNote § - Properiy and eguipment, net

The datallsand movement of property und equipment as at snd for the years ended Decrmber 41 are o4

folliws:
Office
machine, !
. Condommiurn  Turnibord and  Trensportibon
Nt units fdues  equipmest Totsl
2017
Cost
Janunry 1 5,397 (20 368 455 778,186 §.541 881
Additions ' - 126 789 - 128,760
Dacambar 31 8,367 020 4BE 224 778,188 B,A58 430
Accumuinied depreciaton ; _ '
Januzy 1 A.38T.097 7 BI6 T7a.1563 G508 128
D 3 3 22 558 D33 26.504
__ Diepembes 34 5,367 020 380, 534 776,168 i 533,740
Nl bioeik Usluss. : 734 E600 - 134 680
2018
Cost _
January 1 &.307.020 335804 T, 168 5,508:540
Anguisition - 34 3 - 34 R
Decombier 33 £,387.020 IBB 456 776,185 A A41 BEY
Acoumulated depraciation _ _
Jariary 1 537 T 350,787 760,913 8,488 807
Depreciation 13 - 1.208 12,240 10448
Docember 31 535707 337,478 779,183 £ 508, 145
at bock vsiues ] 33 4TH 3033 3515

Fuily depreciated nsgets amotnting Ph.s million are still in nse s at December 33, 2017 and 2016,

fased on the tesalts of manegement assesiment, the Company beleves that theee were ng objective

wvidenee and Indicnters of impoirment exist s at Dmmhtr a1, 80717 anil 2016,

(5]




Arvounts payablo and othee current Habilities ns st December 31 consiat of:

Note 207 2016
Accryed expenses 7,118.555 2.198,083
Paysble lo government sgencies 422 118 208,757
Advance rentals- 232 858 TRV &5
#coounts payshis . 186,004
(Jnegsnad rent - 78, 7E8
Jthers ' 10 257,085 202,205

A 028874 3,580,237

Accried expendes pertain to acerved professionil fees, sudit fee, directors’ fees; fringe and other
prploves benefits, and others, These are non-interest bearing and genaraily with 30 o bo-day-terms,

Payable to government agencies pertalns to outpul VAT, withhalding taxes on salaries, and cther
expinses which sre normully settled within ona (1) month atter the reporting period,

Advinee rertald from relasted partios and third-perty customess are apphied againgg the rent doe it the
pnd of the lesse term,

Acepunts payablé pertain to refundable deposit related w expived lease contracts. These are non-
interest-bearing and wre due ind demaindable,

Ol her avenurts payable pertain to uneirimed monies or dividends by shinpeholders which are non-
interest bearing amd due and demundable [(Note 10).

(o)
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For the thnee (3) yenrs ended Dedembet 91, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Group has not made any
provision for doubtiul accounts relating to umeunts gwed by related parties. ‘This ssessment is
Undertaken cach fmanclal yesr through examination of the finunclal position eif each relnted party and
the marlkét in which the related party operates.

All of the related parties are entities under common conttol 0f the Parent Company, uniess stnted
atherwise. '

Fiallwiri are the Group's trinmactions with related parties:
(o) Legse agregrmils
(i) GMEI

. GMRIhas o non-canceilable lepse agreement with KPMI, for a parce] of land used asa shipyard
site i Barrio San Miguel, Bavan, Batingas: “The anmual Jease rate amotinted to P1o.4 million and
i sulijett to an escalation glause of 2% after mvery fH (51 vears, The lease is for 50 years,
renewable at the option of the lessee for anothir 25 yents, Annual rental on the leased property is
P.0 million during the first five [5) years, subjeet te 10% e lution after every five [5) years, On
May 2, 2007, the leass pontract entered into by the Company and KFMI was amended, reslting
in an inerense in annwal rental mie ta o3 million, effertive January 1, 2007, subject to 1.5%
pscalation after svery five (5] years. '

fental incoime, based on the strilght-line method, ampunted to Po.6 millian bn 2017, 2016, and
25, Totah nutetnnding balance of lease repeivibiles presented in the ponsolidated statement of
finuncial position representing lease differentiol in the cumputation of rent income using straight
Time meih:rj amonnted 1o Pa2.e miflion and P34.8 milllen 25 ot December 34, 2017 and 2016,
respectively. )

The future agitegats minimum lease receivables ymder these aperuting lenses wfter December 31
are as follows: '

2017 2018
Within one (1) year _ 10.087 983 10,508 285
After one (1) yaar tut not mare than five {3) years 42 811,136 42,033,180
More than five (B) years 225424288 235080217
278.123,467  2B8.631,663

«  TInooss, the GMRI entered {nlo o new leise agrecment with KPMT for another pateel ol land
spvering a pericd of one (1) vear comméncmg o January 1, 2015 to December j1, 2015,
subject to yearly renewl

(i) GRIC
GROC lenses its propertles 1o KFML for o period of ane (1] year commening on Januwary 1, 2015,

subject to vearly renewnl undersuch teems and conditions as may be mutually agread opon by
hoth parties, The lesse contracts were Jast renewed on Junary 1. 2017,

{21}



(fii)

(iv)

£PSl

KPSI leases certpin properties to KEMI, KIVL, Kepwealth Property, and KECI for a period of one
(1) yorr, renewahle somuially. The lease contracts with Kepawealth Property was terminatod on
Dctober 51, 017, Lease contracts with KIVE and KECT are for two (2} years and were last
remewed on Afril 5, 2007 and June 1. 2017, respectively.

Purent Company

The Farest Compoany d0d KPMI has an existing land lease ugresment on @ piees of fam] which is
thi subject of complaint against the Philippide National O Company (PNOC) (Note 20),

The monthly reot for the said picce of lind 8 Pé.2 million for o period of one (1) year; subject to
yeurty renewal. The Jease contmet wis lagt rénewed in July o7,

Total rental income eamed from these nyﬂmuni: amannted to Pig7 million for the year ended
December 31, 017 (2006- Piarmillion; 2015 - P16 million],

Advance rentals and refundable deposis are bath equivalent to one (1) month rental of the
eorresponding lease vontract. Refundable depasits amounting 1o Po.2 million a5 0t December 31, 2017
and 216, is preseated under secounts paynble and othor eurrent liabilitles account in the consolidated
statement of financial position, The refundable deposit is to be returndd ol the end of the lease term,
net of nny expenses that will be incurred in the process of restoring the leased premises

)

(e
(i

(1o}

Advancss for various expenses and charges

Amounts doe from BPMI, K531, KPFL, Kepwealth Property, and KEC! pertain to retmbursement
of vartous expenses such s legal, communscation and business development exgienaes pald for by
the Group.

{.oan agreements with KPMT
GMAE

GMER! granted o long-term interest-bearing loan 1o KPMI in September 2014 amounting 1o
Pzoe.o million with an oversge interest rate perannum of 3-45%, The lean has a term of five {5)
veara an principel payment with grace period of 15 months and payable in sixteen (16) equal
uarterly instafments. Thisquarterly interest, commencing on tﬁc date falling three {3) months
from the date of the initial borrowing is based on the interest mate peevalling ot the grant or
repricing date. The loan is subfect to interest re-pricing on semi-annuul basie. The interest vide
applied mngds from 3.6% 1o 4.6% in2oa7 (206 - 3.5% o 5:8%). KPMI mods partial payment of
the loan amounting to Pao.o milton, both in 2017 and 2006, The current and nos-corrent
portion of the loan smounted to P5o.0 million and Pa7s million, respectively (2016 - Prouo
million and F87.5 million, respectively.)

In December 2015, GMRI granted 45-day short-term Joan to KFMLsmounting lo P15.0 million
with interest of 2.9%, In 2mé, KFMI ohtsined additional short-term loan of P82.8 million for
45 1o 9o days at interest rates ranging from 2.6% te 3.2%; In February 2017, the outstunding
short-term imm as a1 December 51, 2mbamounting to PB7.5 millicn was converted to five (51
year long-term loan, payable in 20 equal cansecytive guarterly instalments, pnd interest of 4.5%,
sybject 1o semi-annual repriving, In November 2017, the ssid Joan was proderminated und was
fully paid.




(i)

1o June and Docember 2o17, GMRI granted EPMI additional loans of P18,0 million and

P1a,5 million, respectively, with terms of 4510 90 iy pt 3% interest e, Total callection fraom
Hiése loanyd amounted 1o Pios, 5 million in 2017 (2006 - Pio.g millien),

KPS

KPSI granted shon-term Joan to KPMI oo Feburary 23, 2016 smosnting to P15.0 million with
geor-eliy tertn wnd intierest of 2.2%. Upon maturity, interest was paid and the principal loon was

extended for another 9o davs with intersst of 2.9% unti August 21, 2016 where the principal loan

and {nterest were fully paid.

In Cctober 2016, KPS1 granted another shart-term loan of P15.0 milllon with go-day term and
interest of 5.a%, Upon maturity, the loan was extended with B8 to go-day term with interest
ranging from a.0% - 9.8'%,

{E) Parent Comipany

The Purent Company started to grant short-term loana to KPMI in June 2015 with Inan balahes of
Ma7.0 million ss st December 31, 2017 (2016« Prro million), The loan granted hats 45 1o 90
days term with option 1o retew upon maturity. Interést rates range from 2.9% to 3.5% in 2017
(2016 - 2.8% to 3,2%; 2015 +2,0% to 3.4%]), Asat Decomber g1, 2015, the loan balance wis at
PE4.0 million of which P57.0 million was paid in 2016, Of the P77.0 milllun Toan balanon as it
December 31, 2016, P24.o million and Pe8.o million were fully peid in April 2017 and May 2a17,
rpspectively. The remaining Pog.o million was renewsd upon its muturity with an Bty term af
A% interest and is still outstanding as ot December 31, 2017,

{n June 2017, an additiona] Pso.o million loan was grantsd with go-day term st 3% interest and
wid tenewed thereafter, apon lts maturity, In November 2017, another Pgo.o0 million loan wos
granted with 88-day term at 3% interest.

Total interest incotne earned from theds loan agreenients amounted to Pirs million for the yoar ended
December 31, 2017 (2016 - Proco milion; 2015 - PR.o million), Accrued interest receivable amomnted
to Po,7 million as at December 31, 2017 (2016 - P12 million).

(]

{1
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O Februury 1, 2013, the Parent Company entered into o new mansgement agresment with
Fepventure, Tng,, Kepwonlth Tne, KT and Kopwenbth Property for g monthly manogement free
of P2 thousand, PE thousand, P15 thoussnd, and P5o thowsand, respectively. The monthly
manapemment fees fre subject 1o change depending upon the extent and volume of services
provided by the Parent Company, This will cover regitlar constiltancy, handling of financlal
reparting, persopnel ind administration services inelmding payroll and other government
documentary requirements, The agreement is considered renewed every year thereafter, unless
ong puisrty gives the other a written notice of termination at least three months prior to the
expiration date. In Janwary 2016, Kepventare, Ine, Kepwealth Ine., and Kepweslith Propeny
incressed its mansgement {ee to P22 thousand, Po thousdnd, and P65 thousand, respectivebe. In
Janusry 2017, the management foe Increased to Pe.s thousand, Pro thousand, and P1ia
thousand, respectively, The management agreement with Eepwealth Property was terminated
tnst Oetober 51, 2017 due to the sale of Kepwealth Property toa thivd party.




The Parent Company also provides aceounting services to KECT, un entity under common conteal,
for o monthly management fee of Peg thomsand. The agreement & considered renewed every year
thereafter, unless one party gives the other o written notice of termingtion ot least thres (3)
motiths priorto the anmiversiry date,

Management fees earned pmounied to P18 milllon in 2ei7 (2016 - P4 millidn; 2015 - P2 million).

As at December 31, 2017, there was no intention from any of the parties (o terminate the management
services.

) Kegmanagement péreonnef
Outstanding balanee related 10 siluries and other employes benefits of key management pensonniel
amounting to P5.410,567 as at December 31, 9017 is presented within accrued éxpenses under accounts
peyable und other eurrent liabilities actount in the consolidated statement of finaneial position
(aoue - PES.660] (Note g),
There were no long-term benefits provided 1o key management persontel in 4015 and 2016,

ot 11 - :
The Cluss *A" und Class "B" shares of stock sre identical in all respects and have P par value per share,
except that Class "A” shares nre restricted tn ownership of Philippine nationols, Closs "B shares are
LB and Ba% ownéd by Philippine nationals and foreign natiopals, respectively, asat
Beeetmber 33, 2oty and 2016, Each share hus o right to one (1) vote.

Details of share papital pnd share premiom asat December 31, 2007 and po16-are s follows:

Aulhorized - P par value

Class A 80, 000 000
Ciass B 200,000,000
260,004 000

I=5Ued
Class A 38.840.870
 ClassB 33332 530
Eare capits) 73,173,500
Share premium TAI0A T

Details of the Parent Company's shares as at Deeember 31, 2017 and 2036 wre a4 follows;

Traasury shares
Class A AET4.000
Class 8 11.656.081
15.370.081
Welghmd average numpar of shanas
Clsss A 34 168,070
Class 8 21 638 4459
57,803,419

(13}



In asvordance with S8C Kole 68, a5 Amended (2o11), Annex 68-D, below s o summary of the Parent
Company's track revurd of registration of securities asat December 31

Number of
Mumbsr of shares |ssusiafier holders of
Commen shares. reqrstared prica-  Date of approvel gecurties
2017 :
Ciass"A° 36,166:970 100 June 30, 2004 38z
Clazs "B" 21,638 445 1.00 June 30, 2000 58
57 80316
2018
Clagg'A" 36,168 870 1.00 June 30, 2004 386
Clags "B" 21,635448 100 June 30, 2000 58
57803418 '

There ire 424 1wtal shireholders per record holding both Class A and B shores as at December 31, aoay
{16 - 990 shareholders),

The partion of retained esrmings, corresponding w the undistributed equity in net earmings of the
associates; is not availably for distribution as dividends until declared by the sssociptes.

Hetained enrnings are further rostricted to the extent of tressury shares with the following details e ot
Deedmber 41, 2017 and 206:

) Shares: Cost
Class A 3874000 13408963
Class “B’ 11,596,081 8214013

15370081 22 BI2GTE

The Parent Company’s BOD declared cagh dividends of Pouo per share or P58 mifhon in 2017,
P00 million in 2016 snd 2015 ns followi

2017 2018 2015
Dale of declaration end appraval June 18 June 1T June 1%
Ciate of shareholders' record July' 3 July 1 Jigly B
Date paid Sily 27 Juy 27 July 30

In 2017, 2016, and 2015, GMRI declired cash dividend amounting to Prg1.o million, P2o,0 million snd
P70 million, respectively. Out of this amount, the Parent Company received P65.8 million, Pio.o
million, and P8.5 niillon in 2047, 2016, and 205, fespectively. Dividend declared and pald
attributable to NCI amounted to P6q.3 millicn, Pgy milliaa, and PE.o million in 2017, 2016, and 2015,
respentively;

Total cash dividend paid by the Group smounted to Pég.o milling, P15.7 millian and P14.2 millian In
2017, 4016 und 2015, reapectively. '

{151




As at December 31, 2017, total anrestricted retnined enmings of the Parent Company amounted 1o
Pi57.6 million (2016 - Pog 8 million). The smoomt of unrestricted retained earnings i in mivess of
10 of its paid-up capital as at December 33, 2017and 2016, The Parent Company declired nnd paid
vash dividends on o regular basis to comply with Section 47, Fower to Detlare Dividends, of the
Corporatiom Code of the Philippmes: The Parent Company declares dividend based npon the favornhlo
rosult of operations ind the wvallability of unapproprinted retalned enrings.

Note 1%+ 0 I .
Operoting expensss (or the yvears snded Mecember 11 congist of:

Notes 2097 2018 2015
Satanes, wages, and emplayes banafits 10 11,128,786 7 488871 5 058 T57
Taxss and llzenses 5,805,403 5841210 4730473
Professlaonal feas 2,231 807 243 851 1,282,878
Provisicn for (recovery of) impairmant igsses. 3.4 8 BA0.T48 135,683 (1,485, 355)
Liykties 574 654 La5 400 506,410
Transportahon and travel 672448 607,792 498,017
Mamberzhlp aues 458 (00 410 184 248,608
Lammizsion 400,848 - gz a2
Depraciation and amarntization 7.8 310,852 412551 443 BE1
OMice supplies 126,164 153,748 124 GBS
Pociags 58,032 §1.804 63,185
IBsuranca 47255 B2 480 #6083
Repairs and maintenance. 38,7683 44,201 45,381
Advarising fBEIS 7350 7380
Othars 4 038,408 541,038 AL

D8 677 B34 18726550 14.710.788

Dmnrupcnmmnsutnfhmkrhﬂmu business developiment expensés, and varions ildme that are
incividually immatierisl,

Note 14 - Income taxes
The companents of the income tax expense for the yewrs ended December g1 are us follows:

2017 2018 2015
Currant _ 12,835 084 459,757 4 388 0B
Final tax an interest income 184,703 117274 320,953
Defered (243.474) 5,348 {41,835)

12,781,217 4,182 377 4,547 201

{16)



The Group's deferred income tax lability, net 45 st December 31 consists of the follovwing:

_2m7 2018 -
Tax bass Tax affect Tax base Tax effect
Defarrad ingome tax-assets 10 be
recovared within 12 monihs
Apcrued expenses- 453,367 138,010 = -
Aliowance for doubiful accounts 53 850 18,158 - -
' 607,227 152,168 - =
Defarrad income tax fiability to be
saftlad aftér morg than 12 manths _ _
Impact of leage straightiining (5,4BB.820) (1£4858m) (57O2971)  {1.73F 802
Defarred Income tax liability, nat (4881 353) (1484418 (5782473)  [1.737.B82)

Certain deferred income tax assels were ol

recognized becpiss munpgement believes that futire

taxable profit will not be available pguinet which the deduclible temporary difference and carry-forwand

benetfis of net operating lods ¢ or [(NOLCO) ind excess nonimum eorporate income tax (MCIT)
canbe npplied. Unrecognieed deferred income tax assets and MOIT as af December 35 are follows:
2017 o 2015
Tax base Tax alfect Tax base Tax effect
Accrusd sxpenses 7. 514107 2,254.237 2876823 BR3.eTT
Adwance rentals 4 412363 1,323.708 1414297 424 285
Allowance for doubtiul acoounis: 1,807.840 547 387 1.883.823 &66. 147
Uneamed rantais 282 560 7H.TER fB.TI0 -23.631
NOLEO ' 11168327 3358808 11.820,320 3,546 096
43183287 7557069 18,077,053 5423118
MCIT 374,189 373 198 S24.347 23307
720 188 E.?dﬁ.iiﬁ___

Details of NOLOO and MCIT as at December 31, which can be appliod as dedusction from tixabie
Ineomie over the next thiee {4) vears immodiately following the year of such loss, are o5 follows:

2017 IR
Year imcutred Expiry year NOLCO MEIT NOLCO MCIT
2017 2020 3,787 878 147,536 - -
2018 2019 2,365,434 134 385 2,385,958 134,355
2015 2018 £ 043,017 o2 841 5121,786 855
2014 2017 - . 4,302 566 62 316
- 11,186,327 aT2.t8d___ 11.820.320 322 307
The mevements in NOLCO for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2017 2016

January 1 11820320 13,268,184
Addition 3,797 878 2.395,664
Applicaton (158121) -
Expirad (4,263,748} (3 B44 BAO)
December 21 11,196327 11,820,320

(17l



The mivements in MOTT for thi Vearsended December 41 are ds follows:

2047 2036
January. 1 322307 -2B1,854
Application (7,185) .
Addition 147 538 134 398
Expired (90475) (24,072
Dacambar 35 aT2185 22230

In Angist 2007, GMR] was regitered o o developer foperator of Keppel Philippines Marine Special
Yoonomie Zote with the Philippine Econgimic Zone Authority (PEZA) pursuant to Presidential -
Proclamution No, 132 dated Joby 16, 2007 and the provisions of Republic Act No. 7916, otherwise:
lmpwen s the amended "Speetal Economic Zone Aot of 19657, With this registration, GMRI ls entitled 1o
the specisl tax rute of 3% on gross inedme, in lieu of all national and local texes, except real property

tuxes on land cwned by GMERL

A recopeillation of the income tax at statlory ineome kax rate bo intome tax expense as shown in the

cemsofidated stutement of income fiullows:

2017 2018 2016
Income tax computed ot statutory incoma tax: .
rate of 30% - 20,286,170 4382 503 R.4TD 774
Additioas (reductions) to incoma taxes tesullng Tromt: )
Man-deducible asperise 125,709 104,173 107 588
Changes m unresagnizod deferad inoome fax
pasely . TBET 374 1,184,168 AT 080
[i=est ineome sutienied o Fhal lae {34, T74) (26850 (82 738t
NOLCO applied (4T 437) - u
Nonjaxabie income (1,748 ATH) (5,245 B0E] (873,537}
Income subjnated 1o iower tax rte (2,235,173) 372,259 i5 451 B3]
Differsnce between S50 and temzed dadustions {535,277 (468 300) -
Income tix axpense 12781.217 4182377 4547 201

Income tax pavinble neat December 31, 2017 and 2016 gmoonted 10 Py millios and Po.s million,

respertively.

Banic earnings per share bs culeulated by dividing the net income atinbatable to shareholders of the
Group by the welghted average number of ordimary shares [n issue during the périod, excluding

ardinery shares purchased by the Group and held is trepsury shaves, if uoy,

Eaimings per share fir the years ended Dicember 315 enlealated s foliows;

Mote 207 2016 2015

Net income attributabie to equity boldets _ _

of the parent (a) 48798083 13588588 13170428
\Weigtied average number of shares: _ _

___outstanding (&) 1 57803416 57803418  &)0367.419

Basic eamings per share (8 b) 0.775 0:235 0.218

The Group has no potential shares thit will have a dilutive effect on enrmings per share.
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Note 16 - Operating segments

For management repurting purposes, the Group’s businesses are dlassified into the following business
segments: (1) investment holding and {2) real estate, The Geowp's BOD reviews the performanee of
these repartable seements. Detafls of the Group's business segmenta are o8 follows;,

|waRirmETt ) . .
Halding Fesl eutale Ctibennd Eilminaliots Corsdiidatg
2017
s :
Third pany 7223 g1a 75,188 526 2488 245 2488 745
I SegmEnt, IncuEng '
intareal income 107 G2 V.50 107 B3 T B0 LI0T. 83T 500
Equlby in nat anrmings af . :
B4 BEEGC - T47.280 8742200 - BT4E 200
Tezad revenue 195,250,419 B T, 159,020 (107,997 500] CIE=EN= T
IRCorra bofar roore tis U5 E1Z,1R5 T AEW,. 248 fra gat a0 {707,327 _500) BT A58 01
imgome 1@y ExpenEE (58 TEA) [13 534,481 12,781,257 L . (12 781,21
e Ivenme 90 RS A0 £2 544 THL [l R {167, 327 S0 Bl BFZ
Oihe bnfarmadion .
CSegmen! apEstE T4 BT B84 B 0T 1 128 7h7 B8 (111,493,558 105375630
EogrnEnt [labillles BB & B A TE 13,378 BSY e 111 11 10% 832
Depmeation dnd - o o
amonisadion 22 560 268,007 110552 _ainsse
SUTE '
Revenue
‘Thirgt prty o [.450, 853 28.070:740 32,751,823 32731653
Insed-gegmnat, rcluding :
it (rgsmn 16,033 154 15,032 B8 i1 0,006 § EEr B
Equity in ned germings of i e . ) o3t
an szapoiate - 19218 At . 3 L
la] (T 37 AET 06T ;B8 518 86,070 567 (14,410,000, ﬁ"ﬁ"&%
"~ incame pafuee Income 18E 12403,774 28,508, 41591977 {14 050, 00EH 27,941,877
Incame tay gapenes uﬁq? 44,0135, 08) [#180.37T) ¥ {4,182, 377)
Mat income 12,315:2470 25404 357 27, BO00E00 {94,050, 005) 23,75, E00
Crlbeer Indptiinban R . .
Sagrriner pESETE I35 35T AR 5308 5T 1,144 5673 540 (114010 FeRl) AT BeY
Sageren labilies 3.4pa 337 & GaR 7T 19,844 254 {629, 08 A, G20 181
Dppreciation ang
Tt 43450 &0, 501 412 B - £12.651
itk
‘Revarmum .
Thid pasty CRETS b 25304 afa A 500,631 - B1 500831
iriessgment moligng : '
mispEs] neone 34036 100 13038, 180 (13038180
Efjuiy ift fsl aErnings of ’
i asaocale {B6:036) 14,850236 14 THE 0 - 14, TRE X
Total reve 5,168,541 m‘gd_'% 5B, 35313 (130348 th0; 45285033
T e g —— 774 572 35 022 $4.500,00% (13027 586 39 560,048
inEome fax pEparse [Z0E, 004 14,341 187) 14,647,201 = (4,847 291)
Bt noome BA8E,588 31,461, (65 39,249,533 (13,037 BBE} 20527, 0a7
Oithar [nfarmeion )
e 37 0AT B PAS0EARE UA0SERTET (14201791} 1006155886
Lpmmiand linsilifies EIR.0m 403 B e TR e ;42 o 7358380
Pepracehon gnd
amariziion a4 S5 443,981 443,661

Begment aseets and segment lishilites are messured m the same wiry as o the consalidated finameiad

statements. These assets and ]L'L'h‘ﬂ:il_:i:'k ate allocated hused oo the operations of the ssgment.
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SugmiEnt revenue, sepment ekpenses, and segment results include transfers betwioen business
segments. Those transfors are eliminated in consolidation.

All of the Group's Fevenues are derived from pperations within the Philippines, henee, the Group did
not present geographieal infarmation required by PFRS 8, Dperating Segments.

Rertal ineimé from KPMI amounting to P28 million in 2047 comprise 14.1% of the Group's revenue
{2o1f - Pies million and 28.9%; woig - P36 million #nd 30.0%). '

Nole 17 - Other matlers

In September 2003, te Parent Company fled o mmﬂ.u int against PNOC for specific performance with
the Regional Trinl Court (RTC) of Batangis City for the enfarcement of the contracy reelating to the
aption to purchase & plece of lind |n Batangns, A jodgment was rendeted in January 2006 in fvor af
the Parent Company erdering PNOC toaccept the paymenl of P41 million as full and caomplete
mayment of the purchide price, and to exsoute n Deed 6f Absolute Sule in fuovor of the Parenl Company,
ENOC, however, led un nppeal with the Conrt of Appeals (CA)in the same year, This CA dismissed
PNOC's appeal in Deoember 2011 '

Gy July 95, 2046, the Supreme Court (SC) affirmied the decision of the CA and upheld the Purent
Compony’s option to buy the land and remanded the ense tb the RTC of Batanygus City to updite the
Parent Company's Fillpino equity vwrership, On Tecembar 14, 2016, 5Cs decision becume final and
executory and was recorded in the Boaks of Entries ul Judgments, As at Jonuary 36, 2018, the Parént
Coinpany is still awaiting an the final reaolution of the RTC.

The Parent Company's vhsk depogit of P41 million with the Court is presented in Lhe cansolidated
statement of finapeial pogition under other nan-current nisets. The said plece of land [s'the subject of o
lemse ipreement botween the Parent Company and KPME (Note 10},

181 Financlal risk minagement
Thi Group's activities sxpose it to s yariety of finoncinl risks: credit risk, interest rate risk, equity price
risk, and Hopidity risk that eould aifect its finoncial position and res ults of pperations. The Group's

averall Tisk mansgement program focuses oo the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks 1o
minlmize potentin] adverse effects on the Group's financlal pertormance.

The BLD reviews and approves the policies for maneging each of these risls wehleh wre soimma rived
Lelirw: '

fee) Crisdit risk

Credit risk pertains to the risk that a party to i finaneinl mstrument will fail to dischorge its-obligution
and cause the other party to incuca financial loss.

The Group trandacts siastly with related parties, thus, there i no requirement fur collateral,
Rectivibles npe monitered on an opgaing basis with the resalt that the Group's exposirs te bard debits is
not significant. Significant eoncentration of credit risk in 4037 and 2016 portaina to the loans

teeeivable from o related party smounting to Peqa.0 million aod Paiz.o milllcn, respeptively, which
comprise B7% and B84 of the Group's loans und receivables in 2017 pud So16, reapectively:
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The table below shows the maamum mcposure 6 ctedit Aak 'of the financial ussets of the Group:

217 2018
Lopns and recesvatiea

Cash and cash sgubvalenis® BY.038.829 24311 163

Fgoiivibiles
Loans racesvable bom o related party 242,000,000 317,000,000
Currenl porfran of lease recevabies™ 4,404 E38 1,543 451
it rocehvatie 038 454 1,205,133
Chin from relotled pamiss - B, (i
235171821 4 11T 808

*Erediefing coak oo eng

S xian-purrn pomizoo, of Teese recorveive gre from the strriphr-he recogrition of rensal ivcome, Renew, o
The table below shews the financial effect of collsteral or eredit enhanesment to the Group's fmahelal

pisets py ot December:q1:
Gross
(TR )
sxposure  Mel paposule
2017
Financial assets;
Loang and recevables:
Cash snd cagh aquivaients* B7.936.520 BT 838 829
Riacalvables .
Loans recevatia from a related porty 252 000 000 242,000,000
Curment partion of lease recolvables™ 4,404 538 A A4S 538
Intarest reteivable 828,454 _ B2a 454
36471 821 Ras 1T
iyl
Finmnois 23seis:
Loans and rocelvablen
Cauh and cash eguivalents® 28 811 182 4311 162
Loans recehvable from = relsted party 317,060,000 347,000,000
Current porian of lease receevables* 1,547 451 15843451
Irfsrest recenable 1,205,133 1,208,103
Diig From related padise 58,055 58058
344 117 8405 Add 117 BOA
S Tacdiding caan on hang

S ARAT-E T porion of e oot bies ares frnom the Apmekp et recogicsion of rendol o fostor; ceptudid
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(i) Credit quality

T table below dhows the eredit guality of the Group's financial assets as ot December [44:

Mmifter pasd
tlisg nar )
Frgired Pes) due but , )
{High grads) A mpeired impairmd Teisd
20T
Financial Faswts
Loans wnel recananies
Cash and coxn equmalents Br.354 %29 - B BaB.5IE:
FacnivinEs-
Lomsns reosiaib frer & ielofed pay 242.000,000 - - Jad 000,000
Cuitent poton of imsse recelvabios AEAT.044 Tt 155 AS3. 368 4,404 538
Nem-mage - - F AR 580 2163587
inlmreat recenaln _B2a45e . - 528 454
354 454 428 250,125 2,005 an T30 dzd 501
#0185
Financiel aesels
LoarE and rocoyEeEs: )
SRk and caab EqQUNEET Jaa1e R - 20394 182
Bacsivalies.
Lzans meoehianle from o rlgled party 317,000,000 . 217,000,400
Currs partinn of Esas recsvables I L L 1543451
Interast oo vaite 1,208 138 - 1308, 13
Drre Biei iwlwiod periies 58,089 - L. !&,%g__
i‘i I i I d"_ﬁ = ';.IEE_’M Hlﬁnl

Thee Group cxpeets the current portion of the ledse réceivables:to be realized within three (57 months
from the end of thi reporting period, The amounts due from reluted parties are all callectible and of

good eredit quality,

High prade assets are considered s harvittr very Iow risk and con easily be converted to cash.

These asiets are conshdersd for counterpurties that possess strong Lo very strong capacity 10 meet their

ohligntions.

n 2017, past due but not impaired receivables are aged 00 to 120 days while impaired receivables pre
aged over 120 days (2016 - impaired receivables ure agad over 1 hayn). '

(i) Cashinbhank

The Gropp his maintained business relationships with an acoredited universal bank thut hos high

eredit standing in the financial seevices industry.

The remuining cash m the cotsolidated statement of finanelal position pertains (0 cesh on hard which

is not subject to eredit risk,

(1) Recevalies

— - coghlan f lated iarties
Credit expisnre of the Gronp on loan and other receivabies from related parties is canstdersd to be low

as there |s no history of default and known to have siro eredit history, Additionall
mrinintized sinee the related parties are poying on normal credit terms bused on contracts.

{22)
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The muximum eredit risk exposure is equal to the cirrying amount as at December 31, 2017 and 2016
{Note 13,

Hecenvables from third parties

‘The credit quiality of receivables that are nefther past due nor impaired can be ngsessed by reference to
historieal information abent coanterparty defaull tates.

The Group does not hold any eollateral in melation to these receivables:
None of the financial assets that are fully performing have been renegotiated in the last year.
T} Tntereat pate rigk

Trsteriest pate risk 5 thie risk that the falrvaloe or future gash fows of a fimaacial instroment will
fluctunte becanse of changes in market interest rates,

The Group’s txpasure to the risk of changss in market interest rutes relates primarily 1o the Gronp's
Tong-term Joan receivible with interest rite being repriced on s periodic bagts. Since the Group's long-
term loan was granted to & related party, there {5 oo requirement for collatersl or guaranty (Note 10).

The following tables demopstrate the sensitivity (o o rensonably possible change in Interest mtes for the
next finamcinl yeor, with all other variablés held constant, of the Grloup's income before tax {through the
impaiet on floating vite recelvables):

Change in freresse (deoraase) an
iteras! rates ingares pofore income toax
Loans regalvabls _
' L amT +21 1,055,540
21 (1,058 548)
2018 *5 260,601
-3 {250 691)

The Group deteemined the reasonnbly posable chunge in interest rate nsing the perventage changes in
Hoating rutes for the past three (4] goarters for the years ended December 51, 2017 and 2018,

fe) Eguwity pariid riak

Equily price visk is the risk that the fair value of equities will decrease resulting from changes in the
|evels of equity indices and the value ol individual stocke

The Group's price ek expodure relates to its quoted avafable-for-sale financinl gsset where valuas will
fluctuate ns a resull of changes in warkes prices.

Surh gooted available-for-sale finanetal aaset i subject to price rish due to changes in morket values

arising from factors specifie to the instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all mstnrments traded
in the market,

(a3)



The effect on other comprohensive income (as o restlt of o change in fuic valoe of instramenti hold as
available-for-sale financial #sset) due to a reasonably possible change in indices, with all other varlables
hieid constont, =as follows!

Incregse (detiease] on

Change in other comprehenswve
edqLilly price IFcarnes
Quoted club share
2077 +3 512821
-3 [&12.821)
2078 +15 555,000
-15 {585,000]

The Groop determined the reasonably posgible change in equity priving percentage changes in the fair
value for the past three (3) years,

fel) Liguidity risk

Liguidity righk i the risk that the entity will encounter difficulty in ruising fonds to meet comumitmonts
ausocisted with financis] instruments. Prodent tiquidity risk mansgement implies maintaining
sufficiant cash and the svailability of funding,

The Group's objective 10 maintain o balpsoe between continnty of fmding and Texbility thoough the
use ol :Hﬂft and cash equivalets aod ioans, The Groop also monitors its risk to shortage of funds
through monthly evaluation of the projected and actual cash fow nformation, The table beiow
summarized the mutority profile of the Group's pther finunetnl Habilities (undiseounted amounle af
princtpel and pelated interest) i 5t December 1.

£ Lezs than A 12 Mide i
BormaAnd 2 manihs it ane yoar Tota!
Z T
Fnpnostl liatlites
Aspgunis piesble angd ot cuspmnt lnk i ies® 57068 7118 85 — - 7AT.840
Refundabie doposdy Il £8T 080 - 417 GEl
257068 7118554 487 080 - 7,850,710
2D1E
Emnanelal smiibitag o =
Actounts plyabie and oifer curant kabdtas® 207 305 2381 DaT . :mgﬁ
__ Hshmdsbis 1.B=h 34 1945800
. 5 33B908T IREEED £ 55111

il ding cofput VAT, (eltd hoe Ferbaly, propiirs, afher e, amd papr
8.2 Capital mimagement

The pr_fm.u.r} objective of the Group's capital nuanagement 14 to ensure thal it maintams g stremg eredil
rating and heaithy capilal ratios in order 1o support its hllﬂilli‘ﬁﬂ and mmxdimize ghireholder value. The
Group mansges ity capital structure and mokes adjostments ta it, in light of changes in eeonomic
conditions,

The Group monitors caphtal ustng a debt to equity eatho, which is total abilivies divided by total equity.
Tora Hinbilities indlude current and noncurrent lishilities. Equity comprises all components of equity.
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The Group'p objective s to ensure that there are np known events that may frigger direct or contingent
Fmanclal obfigation thatis maversal to the Group, including default orpeceleration of an oblization,

The disbt o oquity ratios us at December 31 are us flows:

2017 2018
Total lagities 11,103.622 8,520,181
Totat aquity 1004210308 1017 651,655
Dbt to ecuity ratio 0.011:1 0 008:1

The Group is ool exposed 1o externally inposed caphtal requirement aod thers were no changes in the
Groupsapproach o capital management during the year,

il TFair value estimation of financial assets and Habilitles
(@) Loams and receiwtiles

ue to the short-term nature of the Groop's financial instrdments, the carrying pmounts approximate
their fair values a5 ot Decomber 41, 2007 and 2016, The éarrving amounts of interest-bearing long-term
lnan recebvables approximate their fir vidues dur to pericdic repriving based on market interest rates,

(b) Available-for-sale fnanciol assers

The fairvalue of quated syvailabile-for-gale finanelal assets s determined by relerence 1o gloted market
hid priee a1 the close of business at the end of the reporting dites singe this is actively traded in
urganized financial markets, Ungqooted avallahle-tor-sale fimangclal assets are carried at cost, less any
allowance for impairment oss,

fe) Fuir palue erarehy

As it December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group classifies its quoted ayaflable-for-sale finuncial asset
amotnting to Peo.o millian ind Pio.5 million, respectively, under Level 1 of the fair valise hiersmhy,
During the years ended December 91, 2017 and 2016, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Lavel 2 fuir vulue measurements; and no transfers into sod ot of Level 3 fair value mepsurement,

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in cenformity with PFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions thst uffect the amouns reported in the
consalldated finunelal statements and the reluted notes. The estimates, assymptions, and judgments
used wne bised upan mansgement's evaliation of the rebevart focts and corosmatances as at the date of
the consolidated finuneial statements. These are continpally evalunted and wre based on historical
experience and other factors, inpluding expectationg of future events that are believed to be reasonsble
under the cirenmstances, Actual resnits eodld differ from such estimates
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“The estimates, yssumptlons, and jodgments that mav bave b significant risk of causing a material
wdjustment to the carrying amounts of naspts and Habilities within the nest financinl year are diseussed
bl '

w3 Crtlenl sccounting estimates nnd azsumptions
fal Foir :-u.h.nz--qfﬁrmm:i.:r.r instruments

Whers the fair values of finsncis! assetsand finuneial Habilities reccrded in the tonsolidated statement
of financinl position or disclesad in the notes tn cansolidated financisl statements cannet be derved
from sotve markets, these are determined using internnl voluation technigues usiag geneally socepled
market valnation models stich as discounted cash {low technique, The reluted balances are disclosed n
Mrite 18.9.

{t) Extimuted usefid lives of condomumium umits

The Group's management determines the estimated usefnl lives and related deprociation and
amortizstion charges for its condominium units. ‘This estimate is based on the expected future economic
benefit to the Group, Mansgement will inerease the depreciation and amortization charge where useful
lives are Joss than previowsly estimated Tives, or it will write-off or woite-down technioally obenlets assels
that hiave been shandoned or sold. Minegement believes that the current estimated nseful lves of
eondominium nmits (Note 20,7) approximate the actual economic begefits of these assets to the Group.
Further, management does not foreses pny changes in terms of busingss operations that would warrant
reasseesment of estimated useful lives. The carrying yalues of the investment propertles are disclosed in
Mete 7. 1 the astimuted useful lives of pondominium umits differed by 10%, the Group's incomae hefore
incame tax wotld increase/decrease by Po.og million for the years ended December 31, 2007 ind 206,

g2 Crieal adeounting udgments
(ol Cperating lease - Group as lessor

The Group kas entered into various commercinl property leases on its investment properties.

The Grotp hits determined thit it retains all the significant risks and réwurds of ownership of these
properties us the Group cunsidered, among others, the length of the lease term an compared with the
estimated fife of the astets, the plesent valoe of the minimom lepse payments at inception of the legse
dons not substantially cover the fuir valua of the leased asset, absence nf: 1] ownership transfer a1 the
end of the lease term; and i) option Lo purchase the psset ot 5 sufficiently lower amount than @irvalue.
The lensed pasets are also not of o specialized natore. The Group’s operating lease contracts are
prsenrted fivp os mon-cnpeeflable opemsting leases: In detutmining whether a lease conteact i
cancelluhle ar not, the Group considers, umong others, the significance of the penalty, inchiding
ecunomic consequence o (e lossee. Totn) rent income arlsing from operating leases amounted to
Fif.o million for the year ended December 31, 2017 (2016~ Pza.g milllon] 2015 - Piog million).

(h) Contingenties

The Groug Is carfently Involved In a legal proteeding and claims by third parties. The estimate of the

robabie cot for the resolution of these cladms has been developed in consultation with outside counsel
ﬁa ndling the defense in these matters and {8 based upon an analysis of potential reeults, The Group
carrently dies net believe that these procesdings and claima by third parties will have a material effoct
on the Group's consolidated fmancial ststements (Rote 573,
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(e} Impairment of investment properties

The Group assesses impairment on investment properties whenever events or changes in
circumstancesindicste that the carrying amount of an assel may not be vecoverable, This mclades
eonsidering eertain Indiestions of impairment sich ne significunt changes in wsset nsage, significun
decline in assels' market value, or physical damage of on asset, significant underpedormance relative to
expectéd histarical or projected future operating results and significant negative industry or economic
trenuds. The Group recognizes an impalrment loss if such indications are present and whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. This requires the Group to mube
ptimates and assamptions that can materially affect the consaliduted fnuhclal statements, Fature
gvents could couse the Group te condlude that these assets are mpaired. resulting additionn]
impairthent Joss could have 3 material adverse impact on the Group's fimanclal condition snd resulte of
operatinns. ' '

As ut December 31, 2017 and w06, there are no noted indicatoss of impairment on the Groop's
investment properties. The carrying values of investment priperties nmounted to Peog.y million and
Peog.s million asat Decomber a1, 2017 and goa6, reapectively

{el} Determining impairment of recooo bl

The Growp maintaing an allowanee for doubtful necounts on its recervables at o leved considered
sdequate to provide for any potential uncollectible receiviible. The level of this allowance is reguluriy
evaluated by the Group, The Group assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists for a
recelvable by eonsidering the financial condition of the counterparty. The Group reviews the status of
the receivables und identifies amounts that are to be provided with allowanee on o continuous hasls,
The amount and timing of reporded expenses for any pertod would differ i the G mude different
judgments o utilized different estimates. An inorease in 1he Growg's allowanee for donhtful serounts
woitld inerenss the Group's recorded expenses and decreénse current assets. The carrying value of the
Group's receivables amounted to Pe7é.o million and Pasg.7 millon as at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
reepectively. Proviston for doubtful ateounts on the Group's receivables ps at December 31, 2017
amounted to Po6 million (2016 - P22 million). Thene were no pist due peeounty o at December 31,
2017 ind 2016 that were not-already praovided with provision for doubtful eceoumts (Wete 3},

{r) Determinimy impatrient of other current assets

Munagement believes that the Group's input VAT and CWT may not be recoverable because pf the
xpected future minimal transactions where the Group's input VAT and CWT wiil be utitized, Provision
“for impairment lgas amounted to P35 million ae at December §i-0057 (2016 - P3.g million] (Mote 4.
The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would thevefore differ based on the

judigment or estimates made, 17 assessment of recoverabitity of input VAT and CWT was favorakle, the
Giroup's recorded expense wonld decrease by Prg million in 2017 and 2016,
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(1 Tmpodement nfﬂhnl’iulﬁn‘p{ur—sufﬂﬁnunduﬂ axsets

Thie Group recopnizes fm ent lusses on available-for-sate financlal assets whin there hos been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair valve of such investments belaw its cost or wiere other
objevtive evidence of impairment exists. The determination of whit is "significant” or *prolunged®
rr:*chir miudgmmr In determining whether the decline in valoe in significant, the Group mns-_tdfrn
volatllity of market price-{i e, the higher the historical volatility, the greater the décline in fair
mlue before it is tikely to be ed as significant) end the perind of time over which the market price
his been depressed (Lo, a s n decking s less stgnificant than a susteined foll of the same magnitude
over a longer perfod), Future ovents could cause the Group to conclude that these assets are impaired.
Any resulting ndditiomal impatrment losa eauld hova o material impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements. Allowance for impatiment of available-for-sale Ananclal assets amotinted to
Prig million a5 at December 31, 2007 and 20a6; The canying value of available-for-gals financial assets
amaunted to PLo,.o million and P1o.5 million as st December 31, 2017 and 4016, respectvely { Note 5),
Dietnils of the sensitivity anabsis perforined on change in market prioe ere shown o Note 180 (e,

{q) Impairment of muesiments in gesociates

Imvestments in agsoriates carried at equity method are reviewed for bmparrment whenever events or
changes in elroumstaners indicate that the carrying umount may not be recoyerahle.

To determine (f its investment in CLL s impalred, the Group evaluates whether its awnership interest
i the net nssets.of 1ts associate after fair valee adjustments on non-deprociable non-curvent assets of
CL amounting to Pz.yo0,000,000 wnd P2121,000,000 in 2017 and 2016, respectively, i less thin its
vost, Other factors considered are financial haﬂlth. nrld ahirt and Iung—-lm'm business outlook,
including operationnl and financing eash Oows. As gt December 91, 2017, CLTS nel ussets aftir fair
value adiustments amounted to P2158,260,008 bnd henee, the investment is not deemed to be
impaired (2016 - Paash 850.058), The earrving viloe of imwestment (n CLI nmoonted to P3j7.5006.800
as at December 48, 2007 and sa16 (Note 6).

In coté, the Group approved the write-off of KPCI and GV, assoclates who were already issned with
L elearanee and certifiente of dissolution (Note 6.

{h} Hecogmition of diferred fnicome By ossels

The Group’s assessment on the recognition of certain deferred income tax assets on non-deduetible
temporary differences, and carryforwerd benefit of NOLOO and MCIT, is based on the {orecasted
tamable inoome of the fallowing suwbsequent perigda. ‘This forceast is based on the roup's pait reaolts
and future expectstiona on revenues and expenses, Management belipves that future tienble protit
may not by available agsinst which these temporiry differences und rward benefit of NOLLCO
and oxress MOTT ean be applied, thus, no deferred income fux assets and MUIT were recognized 1 at
Pecembeer 41, 2017 and 2016 {Note 14).
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The pringipal seeounting policies adaptod in the preparation of these tonsolidited financial sotements
e set out below. These polities have been conaistently applied 1o all years presented, unless otherwise
Wtmtid. ' )

20,1 Basis ol preparation

The consolidated financial yintementsof the Growp have been prepared in accordanes with Philippine
Financial Reporting Stundards (PFRS), The term PFRS in general inclodes oll applicable PFRS,
Philippine Accounting Standards {PAS), and interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations
Committee (FIC), Standing Interpretations Committes (SIC) and Internutional Finuncial Reporting
Interpretationg Committee (IFRIC) which have been approved by the Financisl Repurting Standards
Councll {FRSC) and adopied by the SEC.

The consolidited fingncial statements hive been prepared under the istorical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with PFRS required the wue of
certain critienl nevounting estimates and assumptions. It also requires manasgement to exervise it
judgment in the process of spplyving the Group's pecounting policies. The areas lnvolving a higher
Hegrve of judgment or complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are significant 1o the
consplidated financial statements wre discloted in Note 19,

Changes In aceounting policles and diselosures
() Neiw interpretation and amended standards adopted by the Group
There are no new standards, amendments to exivting stindards, gnd interpretations which are effective

for the financial year beginning on Junuary 1, 2017 whith would have a significant impnet or is
congidered rolevint to the Group'sconsolidated finsncial statements,
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b} New standards, amendments to grisring standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A mumber of new standards; and amendments and interpretations (o existing standards are effective
feranmual periods aﬂrrdnnuamﬂum?, and have not bevs applied in preparing these copsoldated

finnnedal statements, None of

ure gxpected to have an effect on the Group's consolidated finaneia]

statements, exoept o sot oul belows

PFRS g, Finoncie! instryments (efective Jannary |, po1R), deals with the classifontion,
mogsurement, and impairment of fnancial instroments, & well as hedge aceounting. PFRS 9
repliees the multiple classification and ineagurement models for {ingncial assets in PAS 30 with a
single made] that hes three classification categories: amortized cost, fair value through other
eomprehensive ineome, and fialr value through profit or less. Classification under PFRS g is driven
by the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and whether the conbractnal
charavtertstics of the financial assets represest solely payments of principal ond mterest.
investments in equity instroments are required to he mensured at {air yalue through profit or loss
with the irrevixible option &t fneeption o présent chatiges in fadr value In other comprehensive
income. The classification and measurement of financial Habilities under PFRS g remoine the same
as in PAS 30 except white an entity has chogen to measare a financial lixbility ar fair value throngh
profit o loss. For sieh labilides, chinges in fair value related to changes in own credit risk are
presented separately in other comprehensive fncome. Carrently, the Group secognises the change
i falr value of 1ts avnilable-for-sale finencial aeset in other comprehensive income. Upon adoption
of PFRS g, the Group may retain this classification. Tn addition, there will ba no impast on the
Croup's seecunting for financlal liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the aceounting for
ﬁﬂn;milimh“mﬂ designated b fair value through profit or liss and the Group does not have any
such labilities,

The impairment mles of PFRS g introdute sn expected eredit losses mpdel that relfT.um: the.
mcurred Joss impairment model used i PAS 39, Buch new impairment model will generally result
in earlier recounitlon of losses comprred 1o PAS 39, Given the pature of the Group’s receivabies
and historical eollection rete, the Groop does oot anticipate that PFRS 9 will have a material impact
1 the consolidated finuneinl ststements,

The helgimg rules of PFRS & better align hedge acecunting with an entity’s risk management
strategies: Also, some of the probibitions snd rules in PAS 39 are removed or changed, making
hedge secounting easier or less postly to achieve for many hedges. The Group has no hedging
activities-as-al December 31, 2047 and 2016,




PFRS 15, ‘Revenue from controcts with customers” (offuctive January 1, 2018}, deals with revenue
recognition and establishes principles Tor reporting wselul information to wsers of finenclal
statements about the nature, amount, Hming and tneerhinty of revenue and cash Hows arising
from an entity’s contracts with customers, Revenue b recognised when s custamer obtalne control
of o good or sérvice and, thus has the abitity to direet the nse ad obtain the benefity from the good
or service, Under the new standard, the notion of control replaces the pisting notion of risks and
rwardd, Thestandard replaces PAS 18, Revende, and FAS 11, Construction Contracls, ind réluted
mierpretations. A five-step process must be applisd befors revenne can be recognized which
nelude: (1) identification of contracts with customers: (i) identification of the separate
performance obligation, (D) determination of the transaction price of the contract; (iv) allocation
of the trunsaction price {o each of the separite performanee ochligations; and (v} recognition of
revenue a5 each performanee obligation is satisfied, Revenue may also be recognized enrtier than
upder vurrent stendards if the consderntion varies orany reasens (such as for ineentives, rebabes;
performanee (eeg, royalties. suceess of an outeotme, ¢le.) - minimum amounts must be rédopgnized if
thiest ure not ot significant risk of reveranl, Further, the point at which revenue is able 1o be
recognized may shift: sonie revenue which ls currently recognized st a poin in time 4t the end ofa
coptract may have 1o by revognized over the contrant term and vice versa, The Group intends to
adopt the standard on Janoary 1, 2018 but has sssessed that it will not have a significant effect on
itz gonsoiidated fingncial sistements nsa result of pdoption of this standard as its revenues pre
mainly derived from dividends, Interest, snd rental income, which are all fixed In amount and the
period covered is defined. Additionally, Jeases are outside the seope of PFRS 15, and therefore,
thesre will be ne bmpaet on the Group's consolidated Ananctal statements wpon adoption in Januury
g8,

PFRS 16, Leases' (effective Janmary 1; 2016), The standard now requires lessees 1o recognize o
lense Hability reflecting future lesse paymwnts and a 'right-of-use asset’ for virtonliy bl léase
contracts, The International Accounting Standards Board (LASE) has included an optlonal
exemplion for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value sssets; however, this exemption
can only be applied by lessees, For lessors, the accounting stavs almost the same. However, us the
LASH has npdated the guidance on the definition of o ease {us well ot the guidapes on tbe
combination and sepacation of contracty), lessors will plso be affected by the new standard. At the
very least, the néw aceounting model for lossees is expectad to Impact negotiationg between lossors
and lessees. Under PFRS 16, 4 coptract iy, or containg, & lease if the contract eonveys the cight to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Earlier
applicatinm ts permitted, but anly in eonjunction with PFRS 15, Revenue trom Contracts with
Costomers.: 1n order to Geilitate transition, entities an choose o "simplified spproaeh’ that.
includes certain reliefs related to the mensurement of the right-of- nse asset and the lease lnbility,
rather than full retroapective application; Turthermore, the ‘siimplified spproach’ does not require a
restatermnent of comparstivens, Toaddition, as n practies) expedion) entities are not required to
renssess whether a contraet is, or contuins, & lease at the date of inltisl applicaticn (that ls, such
contructs are “grandfathered"), The Group hes initially nssessed that the adoption of the new
standdrd will not bave animpact on the consolidated Gnancelal statements a6 itis maloly the lessor
in the existing lease agreements. White some differences moy arise ae a result of the new guidance
tn the definition of the ledse, the Group has opted to apply such guidance only to controcts entered
frcto (or changed] on or after the date of initial application. Existing loase contracts will not be
reassesuedd and such expedient will be consistently applied to all contracts,




w02 Basis of consolidation

The consalidated financial statements comprise the financinl statements of Parent Company and its
wnhsidinries ag at Docember 31, 2017 and 2016 and for each of the three yesrs in the penod ended
Decemvber 51, 4017, The Group dses unlform scoounting policies; any differeice betwoen the
sitbsidiaties and Parent Company are ndjusted propedy,

All listrp-group balanees, Granssctions, amd unrealized gaing and logsss pesulting fiom intrp-group
Iransactions are elimisated in full.

Adspgsmment of coriirol
Thie Group contrals an investee if and ealy f the Group hos:

o Power over the investes (Le. existing rights that give it the current abilite 1o direet the relevant
artivities af the Investee);
Fxposure, o rights, 1o varable returns from ite involvement with the Investes; and
Tha ability to use ite poverr peer the livested to alfet its returms.

When the Group has Jess than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and cireumslsnces in gssessing whether it hos power over an investes,
including:

»  The contrectual armngement with the other vote holders of the invester
« Rights srising from othér controctual arrangements
s ‘The Group's vating rights and potential voting rghts

The Parent Company Te-assessen whether or not it controls an investee if facts and cironmstaress
indicate that there are chiunpges 10 one or more of the theee elements of control. Non-controlling
interedts (NCT) pertain to the equity in a subsidiary not stcributable, directly, orindirectly to the Parént
Company, NCIrepresent the portivh of profit or loss and the net assets not held by the Gronp and are
presented separately in the eonsolidated stutement of neome and consplidated statement of total
comprehensive income and withis equity in the tonsolidated statement of financial position and
cansoliduted statement of changes in equity.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprebensive income are stiributed to the equity holders
af the Parent Compand and 16 the NCL even if this results in the NC1 having & deficit balanca,
Aequisttions of NCT are sccounted for osing the soquisition method, wherely the Group ebtisiders the
aequisition of NCT as an equity trangaction. Any preminm or discount oo subsequenit purchases from
NI shareholders 8 recognised dirertly in equity and attzibuted 1o the ownersaf the parent.

A chiange in the ownership interest of o subsidinry, without 4 joss of controd, is nocounted foras an
equity tramsaction. 1f the Group leses control over o subsidiary, it

Derecognizes the nssets (including goodwill) and liubilities of the subsidiary
Derpeognizes the carrving smount of any non-controlling interests
Derecognizes the cumulative trunshition differences recorded in equity
Recognizes the falr vatue of the consideration receved

Recogntes the fair value of sny imvestment retained

Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

& @ & @ ® ™

(32)




» Reclassfies the Parent Company’s shure of components previously recognized in other

pomprehensive [nopme 1o

profit or loks or retained earnings, us appropriate, ud would be

required if the Group had directly dieposed of the related nssets or Habilities

A gt Deeember 31, poayand 2016, NCT pertaing 10-99% and 5% owniership of KPMI Retivément Plun
and KPMI, respactively in GRDC,

The finaneinl information of GRIM und its wholly-ovwned subsidiary, GMRL, is provided below,
This information is based on pmounts before inter-company eliminntions.

ST 2018
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There are no significant restrictions on the Group's ability to use the assets or setile Habilities within
the Geoup, There is no difference on the voting rights on non-controlling interests compared 1o

rrajority ahareholders,

20,3  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on band, deposits held at eall with banks, other short-term,

highly tiguid investments with original maturities of three i) months or

Yess that sre readily

comvertible to known nmounts of cash and which are subject to an indigniticant-rsks of changes in
value, These ave carred in the consolidated statement of fimancial pesition st face smoent orat

nominal amotint,

20,4 Reccivables

Recoivables ariming from regular sale of serviees with avernge oredit term of go to o days are megsured
at the original invoiee amount which approximates fair valoe (as the effeet of discounting is
tmmateriall, less any provision for impairmont. Other receivihles ore recognized inftinlly a1 fvgr valee
anil syhsequently measured at smortized cost using the effeetive Interest method, less any provision for

impairment,
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Receivahlies nre included in current assets if maturity is within 12 months from the reporting date.
Ciherwise, these are classitied as noo-curcent asseis.

A-provision for impairment of receivahles is pstablished when there b objective evidence that the Group
welll not be able to collect all amounts due setording to the original termd of the recervables,
Stenificant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debror will enter bankrupiey or
finantial reorpanizition, and defsult or delinguency in payments are congidered indicators that the
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present valoe of estimated future eash flows, discounted at the eHective interest rate.
"The carrying amannt of the nsset is reduced through the use of an allowsnee sceount, and the amount of
tho loss {a recognized in the consofidnted statement of income within operating exponses. Whena
recetvable remning uncollectible aftor the Group has exerted all fegal remedies, itis wrilten-ofl aguingt
tha allowanee secount for receivables, Subsequent recoverios of nmounts previously wittien-off are
credited against operating expenses it the consolidated statement of income.

20,5 Financinl instruments
{a} Classification

The Grioup clussifies (15 finandial gsgets apd labilities according to the categories deseribed below,
The elessification depends on the purpase for which the financial assets and liabilities were acquired.
Munugement determines the classifieation of it8 financial sssets and Habilities at nitinl recogmition.

Fliancial issets

The Group clussifies its finanetal sssets [n the following categories: loansand receivables, held-ro-
maturity investments, availalile-for-sale financial psscts at fair value through profit or joss. As st
Devember 41, 2017 and 2016, the Group ety has financial ssoete claszifled g5 loans and receivalles and
pviilable-far-gnle financial nsseta.

(i) Loansand recetviblos

Loans and recedvables are non-derivative fnancial assels with fined] ar determinable piyiments that ore
not guoted in un active mnatket, These areingiuded in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months sfter the reporting dite, in which cuse, these are clussified as non-¢turrent assets. As at
Dievember at, iy and 2046, the Group's lnans and receivaliles include cash and cash equivalents, loan
receivables, cuerent portion of lease receivables, imervat receivables, and due from related parties,

(U] Avallohle-for-aale finnmonl aeseld

Available-for-sale finantidl asssts are non-dervative inancial assets that are cither designated in thas
category or not classified in any of the three (3) other categories. The Group designates finaniial
Instruments in this category if these are purchased and held indefinitely and may be sold in response tn
hidity requirements or changes in market conditions (Note 33,

Financial liakdlities
The Group classifies its financial liabilitles i the follewing eatepbries financial fisbilities at {rir valde
through profit or loss (including fnancinl habilities held for teading and those designated at fafr value):

and finaneial linbilities it amortized cost. The Group's fnandial Habilities are of the nature of financial
liahifsties at amiortied cost.
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Finatdlal lahilities 98 amortized cost pertains to iksoed finaneial instruments that ore not classifiod as at
fair value thtough profit or loss and contath contriél abligations to deliver cash or another financial
asset to the holder or to settle the obligation other than the oxchange of a fixed amount of cush. These
iire [mctuded in current Hebilities, exceyit {or meturities greater than 12 months afterthe reporting perind
which nre classified as non-current linbilitles,

The Group's finoneial labilities at aemrtized cost inclede acvounts payoble and other current liabilitles
Ceodoept paynhle to government ogencles) and refundable deposits,

(b} Recpgrition and measurement
(i) Initlal recognition and measurement

HRegular purchases and saleq of investments are recognized on trode date (the dote o which the Group
pommits to purchase or sell the asset) at lnvobee amount. Financial assets are initially recognized at fair
valne plus transaction costs for all finanedal aseets not carried at fair value through peofit or loss.
Financia! assets and Habilities are initially recognized at fair value plos transaction costs.

The Group recognives o financial Hability in the consolidated statement of financial position when the
(irup becomes o parly to the contractunl provision of the instroment. Financial Habilithed it amortized
eost are inftially recogrized at fair value,

{11j Eilhﬂequant IrEESITEment

Lonng and recoivables are subsequently carred at amortized cost using the effoctive intepest method,
lege provision forimpairment,

Aviflabie-for-sale fingncial assets are subsequently carvied at fair value, Changes in the fair value of
mongtary and non-monetary pesets classified ns available-for-sale are recognized In other
pomprehensive income. '

Financial linhilities st omortized cost are subsequently measured of amartized cost using the effective
interest rate method, Amortiyed cost bs caleulnted by taking tnto socount any discount or protmium an
the issue and fees that e an dotegeal part of the effective interest rate.

(e} Impairment of finanoal assets

The Group ussesses it the end ol each reporting perlod whether there is objective evidence that &
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired, A financial nsset or a group of fimanial dssets s
impaired and impairment Josses are incurred only if there is abjective evidence of impairment s a
result of one o moce events that secirred aftor the nitiel recognition of the asset (a 'loss event’) and
that Joss event (or events) has ko impaot on the estimated foture cash flows of the financinl asset or
group of fnanciol nssets thet onn be reliably estimated.




Evidéncs of Imprirment maoy include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is exparientcing
sighiflcant finuncial difficulty, defsult or delinquency in'interest or principal paynients, the probability
thut they will enter bankruptey or other financial recrganisation, and where ohaervable dats indicate
that there is & measurible decrease in the estimated fotore cash flows, such us changes in urrears ot
erohode conditlons that corvelate with defankts:

() Leanszand recervables

For luune amd receivables, the Geoup first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exizts
individually for reeeivables that are lndividually significant, and collectively for reeetvabiles that are not
individunily significant nzing the criterin nbove: I the Gronp desermines that no objective evidence of
impalrment exists for an individually assessed receivable, whether signifioant or not, 1t ineludes the
assel im0 growp of financial pssets with similar credit fisk characteristies and eollectively asaesses thoss
for impatrment. Recchubles that ure individuslly pssessed [or impaivment and for which an
impatrment loss s or continues to be recognized are not ingloded in o collective assessment of

fmpairment.

The amount of the Toss (8 measured an the difference between the nsset'scarrying amount and the
present value of estimated futore cash fows (excluding future eredit losses that have not been incurmed)
discounted at the financial nsset's origimal effective Interest rate. The zs4ut's carmying amount ig
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Hloans and recefvabiles hove a
viriable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loos = the current effective
intereit rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may meastire
impairment oo the basis of an jestrument’s falr value vsing observable market price.

If, in n subsequent period, the amount of the Impainment loss decreases apd the decrease can be related
ubjectively 1o an event pecurring after the impoirment was recognized (such as an improvement in the
debtors cradit rating), the reversal of the proviowsly redogniedd npalrmoent loss is recognized in profit
ar lass. Reversals of prevdously recorded impairment pravision are husid an the vesult of
munagement’s update assessment, eonsidering the avallable fncts-and chianges in cirnumstances,
tncluding but nat Hmited to results of rmeent discussions and arrangements entered into with cnstomers
g8 10 the recovernbility of receivables ut the end of the reparting period.

Subseqient recoveriss of ameunts préviously written-off sre credited agamst opersting expenses i
prof or lgis,

Lrvpairment testing of recetvaliis = desoribed in Note 20,4,
i) Avallible-Tor-sale financial wasata

The Group sesesses ab the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
firtancial asset or & group of financial assets is impaired,

Frir sguity investments, 3 significant or prolonged deciine in the fair value of security below jts cost i3
olsi eviderice that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists the pumulative loss - messured
as the difference between the aequisition eost and the current fir value, bess any impairment loss on
that financinl asset previously recogmized in profivor loss - is removed from equity and recognized in
profit or loss, - irment losses recognized inprofit or laes on equity instruments are not reversed
through profit or less.
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(d) Lerecogition

Finaneial assets are dervetpnized when the rights to recelvie ciish flows from masets hive expired or
huve been fransferred and the Growp has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Financial Habilities are derecognized when extinguighed, L. when the obligation i3 dincharged or i
cancelled or hag expieed.

fe) eifeetring of franciol assets and labilities

Finanial assets nnd Hobilities are offset and the net amount reported in the cunsolidated satement of
finuncial pusition when there {50 legally enfoicenbie right to offset thé recognized amotmts and there i
an intention 1o settle on & net basis gr-realive the asset and setthe the labiiy simultan=onsly,

Thit Jessally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events nnd must be enforoeable in the
normisl eourse of business and in the event of default, insolvency or banlksy prey of the Group or the

seunlerparty. As gt December 41, 2017 and 2016, there were noy offselting drrongements,
2.6  Investments [n pssociates

An usaoeinte & an entity over whileh the Group hoas sigoificant influence, Signifioant influence Is the
rawer to participate in the financial and nperiting polley dectslons of the Imestee, ot is not eontrol or
joint contial over those policies.

The Group's investments in nsscciates are asccounted for vsing the equity method In the eonsolidated
financipl statements from the dite on which it becoines un sssociate. Cumulative adjustments for
periads prior to this event are not recognired.

Under the cquity method, the lovestzents in assodinies are enrried in the consolidated statement of
financiz! position at cost plus post-acquigition changes n 1he Growp's share of net pssets of the
‘pasoelites, lessany dividinds d_uﬂsr:ﬁnnd impairment in value. Ifan investor's share of fosies ol an
asaocite equals o exceeds its interest in the ssstciate, the investor discontinues recognizing is share
of further Iozses, The interestin an associnte isthe carrying smount of the investment [ the ussocinte
under the equity method together with aoy long-term Interests that, in substance, form part of the:
investor’s net investment in the associate. After application of the aquity method, the Group
ditermines whether it 1s netessary to recogniite any ndditional impairment loss with respect fo the
Group's net mvestment in the associate. eonsolidated statement of income reflects the Gronp's
share [n the results of operations of the associates. This in included in she "Equity in net pornings of
pssocintes” aceount in the coneolidated statement of income. Afier the Groups interest is redueed to
‘zere, ndilitional losses ape provided to the extent that the Group hae incurred legal or constmetive
ahligations or made payinents on behalf of the pasociate. When there hits been o ghange recognized
dirsctly in the equity of the associate, the Groop recognizes its share of uny change and discloses this,
when applicable, in the consolidoted statement of changes In équity.

fyin wn Aseoeiite makes dividend distributions to this Groug in excessof the carrying ameunt, a
Tability should only be reeugnized if the Group is obliged to refund the dividend, hias incutred o legal or
constructive olitigrtion or made payments on behalf of the wssociate. In the abbence of such
obligations, the Group recognizes the excessin nel profit for the period. When the associile
subisequently makes profits, the Group will start recognizing profits when they expeed the excess cash
distributions recognized in net profit plus any previously unrecognized losses.
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The reporting dates ol the adsociaies and the Group are Wentical and theassovintes” aceconting policies
eonform 10 thpse used by the Groug for Tike transactions and events in similar cireumstances,

Unrealized gains arising from intercompany tramwmetions with its sssoclates are ellmimated to the
cxtent of the Group's intercst in the nssociate, against the investment in the spsopinte. Unreatized
Josses are eliminated similasly but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment of the
naset transfErred. ' '

nvestient in sssociate is derecognized upon disposnl o loss:of significant influence pvepan assooiate.
Upan loss of significint influenee over the associate, the Group mensures and recognizes sny retained
investment at its fir valoe, Any difference betwesn the-carming amount of the associate npon loss of
sipnificant influence and the farr value of the retnined imvestment and proceeds from dispossl b
recofnized in profit or loss,

20,7  Investment propertios

Investment peaperty is defined as property held by the owner or by the lessee ander o finesce lease to
eirn rentals or for cepitul appreciation or both, rather than for; (8) use in the production of supply of
geods or services of for admindstrative purposes; ot (bjsale in the commaon couree of business.

The Gremp's investment property, principally comprising of land, building, and condominium onits, are
held for capital appreation and is mot otoupied by the Grotp. The Group his adopted the cost model
for s investment properties (Note 7).

Transfers ame made 1o investment property when, and only when, thers s a change. in nse, evidenged by
wneting of owner-pecupation of conrmencement of an operting lense to anotlier party. Transfersare
made from (nvestment property when, and only when, there is o change [n use, evidenced by
commeheement of owner-ocouphtion or eommencement of development with n view 0 sale.

Fur o transfer from investment property to cwner-ceeapied property or imventories, the desmed cost of
the property for sihrequent netounting is its fair value at the date of changein use 16 the property
occupied by the Group s an owner-neonpiod property becomes an investment property, the Group
secounts for such property in accordance with the pn[m}r stated under property and equipment op to
the date of ¢hange o use. '

Depreciation and amortization of investment properties are computed using the stralght-tne method
arvor the following estimated aseful Hved in years:

Builging and impravaments -
Condominium units 25

The fair vahue of the investment properties i categorized as Level 3, which used adjusted inputs for
valuation that are unobservable sx st the date of valuation. The inputs used were asking prices of
similsr Hetings and offerings. Significant inereases or decreases in acking price would result In higher
or lower fair value of the dsset.




Investmint properties are dececognized when either these hove been disposed of or when the
investment properties dre permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic brenefit isékpected
frizm their disposal. Aoy gaing or losses on the reticement or disposal of investment properties are
recignizad in profit of loss in the year of fetirement or dispaosal.

20,8  Property and eguipment

Prapedty and equipment are ftated at cont, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicim, Tesy
secomuinted depreciation and any sccumulated impalrment in valne. Sueh éagt includes the cost of
seplacing part of stich property and equipment when that codt is incurred #f the recoEnition oritens are
niet. Deprociation is calenlated on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets,

The musets’ restdual values, useful livis and method of depreciation ave reviewed, and sdjosted if
appropriste, ateach fnancial year-end. When a major inspection I8 performesd, s cost s recognized in
thie ;ra.n'y{ug amannt of the property and equipment s & replacement fthe recognition oniterls ure
sutisfied. '

Disgreeiatinn of property and dquipment is computed using the straight-line method over the following
estimated wseful lives In years:

Condominium units 16
Ciffice miashine, furnilute dnd fixuese 1
Transpartation sauibrrent

o 25
Wb
3

An item of property anid equipment is derccagnized upon disposal or when no future evanpmic bemefits
are eupected fram its yse or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset {caleuloted
as the difference between thi nt*_r.ﬂklp_ﬁgaj" proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) bs included in
profit ar luss in the year the asset is derecognized,

20,9 Impalrment of non-financial assets

Assrts that have an indefinite useful fife, including land held for development, mvestment property
frarried at fuir yalue), and investmunt in subsidiaries, are net subject to depredation and smortizntion
and ore tested anonually for imprirment '

Assets that have definite wseful life are subject to depreciation and amortization and are reviewed for
impairment whensver svents o changes in clecumstaness indicate that the carrying aount may not be
reoovernhle, An impairment [oss is recognized for the pmaunt ~which thie gsset’s carrying atuig
exeveds its reecverable amonnt. The reoversble amount i the higher ofun geset's foir value lese costs
oy d] and value in use, For purposes of nssessing impalrment, assets are grouped at the Iowest levels
fur which there are separately identifinble cash fows {cash-generating units). Non-financial nssets that
are jmpaired are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment st each reporting date,

Where nn impairment loss subsequently reveries, the carrying amemnt of the asiet or emsh-generuting
unit by mereased 1o the revised estipute of its recovernble amount, bt the inoreased carrying amount
should pot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined hind no impairment loss bieen
vermgnized for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reverssl of an impairment lnss is
roeognized a5 income immediytely in profit or Joss,
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goa0  Faie vmlue mmesisaremeil

Fair value is thie price that wiotld be récieived to sell nn asset or pald o transfer a fiability [n an ordorly
trafisaction between market participants st the measurement date.

The fulr value of a non-financial ssset is measured bazed on its highest and best use. The aiset's
current use 14 presumed to be ite highest ond beae vse,

The fuir value of financial and non-financial labiibes tokey into aecount nén-performinee rigk, which
15 the risk that the entity will not fulfill sn obligation.

The Group classiftes jte fair valne messuremionts using a fair valus kierarchy that reflects the
significhnee of Ube inputs used in making the mensurements. The fairn value fiesarchy has the fallowing
|ewela:

o quoted prices [unndjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labdlities (Level 1)

o inputsother than quoted prices included within Fevel 1 that are observable for the asset or Habiin,
either directly (that {5, a5 prices) or indirectly {thatds, derived from prdces) (Leyel 23 and

= Inputs for the psset or Hability that are not based on ubmn abde market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (Livel 4],

The appropriate level 1 determined on the basis of the Jowest level iput that is signifieant to the fair
vilue moasarement. '

[} Finanetal nstrments

The fuir vialue of financial instroments traded in active markets s hased on gooted market prices ot the
reporting date. A market 15 regarded a5 dctive if quoled poices are readily amd repulacly available from
nn-exchange, dealer, broker, imdustry group, priving service, urr:ga:lalm agency, and those prives
repiresent aetil and rﬂgul.i.rt.' aeourring market truneaotions on an arm’s length basis, These
instruments are ineluded in Level 1. The svailnble-for-sale finnncinl sesets of the Gronp are clnasified
under Level 1 category.

The fakr value of Ansncial nstruments thit are not trided in an active marked (for example, tver-the-
coithter derivatives) is determined by vsing wnluation techniques. Theso ynluation
maximize the nse of chaeresble market dits wheree jtis avaflable and n_Ly aa litthe as possible o entlty

specitic estimates, If all significant inputs reqilred 1o falr vadue an nstroment are abservible, the asset
e lizbitiny s meloded in Leviel 20 There are oo Aoancin] imstriioents thay W1 andes the Level @

calegory,

If one or mote of the sipnificant inputs i not based on ohaarmble market dst, the instroment is
included in Level 3. There are no financial instroments that fall under the Level 3 category, There were
no transfers from one eotegory 1o another in 2007 ond 2010,
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{h) Non-finaneial asssts or labilites

The Group uses valustion technigues that are appropriote Ih the circumstances and applics the
technigue consistently, Commonly used valuation technlques are an follows;

e Marketapproach « A valuation technique that pses poces und other selevant information generated
ty market transsctions involving identical or bomparable (e, similar) sasets; lisbilities of & groogp.
of pasets and labilities, such ns a business,

¢  Ineome spproach - Valuation techinlgues that ponvert future amousts (e, cash flows or income
and expenses) bo o single enrrent (0., disconnted) amount. The foir valug measurement is
determined on the basis of the value indiepted by current murket expectations sbout those future
Do,

o  Cost spprosch - A viluation technigue that reflects the amount that would be required currenily to
replace the seevice capacity of an asset (often referred to as ourrent replacement cost).

spocific valurtion techmigues used 1o value finuncis! instruments include:

uoted market prices or dealer quotes for simalar mstruments,
The fair vallie of intereit rate swaps B oalenlated as the present value of the estimated futare cash
flows based on observable vield curnnes.

«  The fair valoe of forward foreign exchange cottraets s determined neing forward exchange riutes at
the reporting date, with the resulting valoe discounted back to present value,

o Oflser techniques, sueh as diseounted cash flow nnalysis, are used 10 determine fair value for the
remaining fnunclal Instroméents,

Lavel 1 fair values of investment properties hove heen derived using the sales comparison approach.

This comparison approach considers the sales of similar or substitute properties and related market

dat lind establishes a value estimate by processes involving comparinon. Sules prices of comparable
properties in clase preadmity sre adjusted for differences in key attributes such as propery size. The
makt significant lnput fnto this wlustion approach 8 price per square meter.

Thie Group hasno non-financinl assets or fisbdities clussifed under Lovel wand § catogory,

zo.11  Equity
fa) Share capital and shiave premmium
Share capital iv measared st parvalue for all shares-issoed, mfh:u-ﬂ:_n_: Group issues shares in sxtess of

par, the excess is reotenized a8 share premium, Ineremental costs ineurred directly attributable to the
tssuanes of new shares are treated a3 deduction from share premium,

{b) Treasury shares
Treasury shares are recorded at cost and presented as o deduetion from equity, When the shares are
retired, the shave capital necount is rediced by thi par value ond the excess of cost aver par-value ugon

retirement is debited to share premium to the extent of the specific or average share preminm when the
shares were issued and to ceteined farnings for the remaining balance, '
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(e} Retained earmings

Retained earnings iielude cirrent und priorvear's results of operabions, retal transactions with
shureholders and dividends declored, [Fany.

Cash dividend distribution to the Group's sha reholders is roeognized as p linbility in the Groop's
cunsulidaed financial statements n 1he period in which the dividends are approved by the Gronp's
BT,

20.12 Hevenue, income, und expense recognition

ferd Revemse gnd income

Reventie ar income i recognleed to the extent that it is frrobabilo that eronomic Benefits will fow to the
Group and the revenue br ingome con be reliably messured. In arangements whiere the Group is
acting as principal to lts custamers, feveniie o INeome ¥ recopnized on 4 gross basis, However, if the
Group I8 acting 2s an agent 10 ity costomers, only the amount nf net commission retalned s recogmized
RS MEVENTIE OF incime,

The following specifie recognition criteris must aliv be met before revenue orincome is recogsized:

{1} Rental income

Rental inenme feoly investment properties is sccounted faron a straight-line basis gver the lease term.
{11 Intores! Ineome

Triterest income s récognized as the interest aeuTnes, taking into nocount the effective vield on the asset.
(fii) Management focs

Mensgement fevs are recognized asthe services are rendered based on the terms of the manigement
rontract.

[iv) Directors fees

Diruetors' fres are recogniied s the services are rendered.

{v] Dividend income

Dividend Income i& reianized when the sharsholders' sight 1o receive the puymrqtiu:_ml:!i:hed.

th) J:xpem!:a

Fpenses are dicreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of citflows or
deerease of nssets or incurrence of labilities that tesull In deerease in equity, othet than those relating

bo d.uantiuth:m b equity pasticipants. Expensesare recognized in profit ar loss in the perlod these are
incu
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20.3 Employee benelits

Shori-tetm emplovee benefits inolude items such s saluries and wages, sovial socurity contributions
and non-mimetnry benefits, i expected 1o be settled wholly within =2 menths after the end of the
reporting period tn which the emplovess rendered the rodated serviees: Short-term employee benefits
are recognized a8 expense oy incurmred. When an employes has renilered service (o the Group during
the reporting period, the Group recognizes the undiscounted amount of short-term employes beoefits
expected 1o be paid in exchange for that servies as a Hability (acerued expense), after dedocting any
wmount alresdy paid, Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to thelr present value, I material

The related linhility on dmploves beoefits |s derécognized when the obligation f discharged or
eancilled. ' '

20.14 Leases - Group os lessor

The detormination of whether an arrangement is or containg a lease, is based oo the substapee of the
arrangement ntineeption date, whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a

- specific pssek or asseteor the arrangement conveys a tight to usn the assol. A reissessment t radde
after the inception of the lease only if oné of the following applies:

(4} there isa change in the contractunl terms; other thun o renewal or extension of the arrangemett]

(b) & renewal option |s exercised or extension granted, unléss the term of the renewal and extension
was initially Included In thelense term;,

fg} thereis a change in the determination of whether the fulfillment is dependent on 4 specified sspet;
i1y

() there i a substantlil change to the aesel

\Whete a reassessmient is made, lease aceounting shall commence or cense from the date of the change
| iroumstances thaf gave rise to the reassessmant for scenarios {a), (c), and (d) above and at the date
af renewal or extension period for scenario (b,

Group as a lessor

Leuses where the Group rituing substantially all the rsls and benefits of cwnership of the assel are
classified s aperating leases, Lesse income from these operating lenses is recognized on a stenight-line
busls over the lense term.

Refundable depsits

Refundable deposits are mensured fnitfally al fair valoe and are subsequently measured ot amortized
gost ysing the using effoctive interest method. Refundshle deposits are measured ot the orginal
amiotint (28 the sffeel of discounting is immaterinl). These are clossified ps ourrent habilities iof pasment
{s due within one (1) vear or Jess (or in the normal operating cyele of the busipedsif Jonger). I not,
thiese are presented a3 non-current Hubilities. These are derecognized once refunded to customers.
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Addvanee rentals

Advanes rentals represent rentals paid in pdvanes by the tenants that are to be applied in subsegoent
mwnth's pental, These s classified as current Habilities i pavment |s due within ane (1) year or Jess
{or in the normal operating cvalo of the business if langer), I pot, theqe are presented as non-corrent
Halillities. Thess are devecopnized unce applied against rent due.

215 Income laxes

The ineome tax expense for the peripd comprises current and deferred income tx, Tax is recognized in
proftt oF s, exeept 1o the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive incoma or
ehirectly in eguity. Tn this ease, the thx ls also recognized in other comprebensive inconse or direetly in
equlity, respectively,

The corrent income tax charge is calenlated on the hasis of the tax lows enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returnd with
respect to situntions in which applicable tax regulation is subject to intecpretation and sstablishes
privisions where approprinte on the hasis of amounts expeécted to be paid to the tax suthorities,

Deferred inpome tax ix recognited on tempurary differences arising betwieen the tux bases of sssets and
lasbilities and their parrying amounts in the consolidsted fimameial statements, However, defermed
{ncome tax iz not socounted for i 1t arises from initsl pecognition of an asset or Habilily in o transaction
ather than o buslness combination that st the twe of the transaction affects peither sccounbing nor
thxable profit or loss. Deforred income tix s determined tsing tax rates based on existing laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date and are expected o apply when the
related deferred income tax assel is realized or the deferred income tax liabiliby is settled.

Deferred inbotrie 1ax assets are poodgnized for oll dedoctible temporary differences, enrry-forwand of
unused tax losses (NOLCO) and pnused tax credits (excess MOIT) to the extent that it is probahle that
future taxable profit will be svailable agpainst which the temporary differences, unused tex losses and
unisied tax eredits can be utilized.

Drefarred incomi tax assets sre recognized on dedustible temporary differences arising (o
investmients in subsidiaries, associates, and joint prrangements only to the extent that it s probable the
temporury differenee will reverss in the futare and there is sufficient taxable profit svailable against
which the temporary differgnce can be utiliwed.

The Group reaskesses at ench reporting dute the need 10 recognite s previgusly onrecognined deforred
| o tuk wased,

Deferred income tax Wabifities are recognized m full forall taxable temporary differences, except 10 the
extent thit the deferred incorme tux Hability arises from the iniﬁu!.mnr:ﬁﬂﬁuu of gondwill, Deferred
lneome tax lalidlities are provided on taxable temporary differences arising from investmeants in
axsocintes, except for deferred income tnx Hability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference Is controlled by the Group and it is probeble that the temporary difference will ndt reverse in
the foresecahle future. Generally, the Group isunable to eontrol the reversal of the temporary
difference for assoristes, Only where theve |5 an agreement fn place that gives the Group the ability to
controd the reversal of the temporary differonce not recognizod,
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Deferred ncome tax assets and Habilities mre offset when there isa legally enforceshie right to offset
current income lax dssets against current ihcume tax Habilities snd when the deferred Income tax
a<sets and labilities refate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where thereds an intention to settle the balinces on a net basis,

Deferred Income fux assels and Habilivies are dersgognized when related bases are realized fsetted ot
witen it b no longer reatizable/due.

zo.16  Other nssels
Revenue, expenses, and assets are recopmized net of the amount of sales tax except:

o where the tax incurred on o purchase of ussets or gervices is not recoverable from the tex
muthority, in which cuse thi tex is recogniaed as part of the acguisition cost of the isset or as
part of theexpense item ag applicable; and

» receivables and payables that are stated with the smount of tax included,

Input VAT is carrled ot face amonnt or at nominal smownt less allowsnee for impairment loss,
The net priount of VAT réeoverable from, or payahle 1o, the tax authority s included as part of pther
current seets of liabifitles (n the mn.-anli:imd statement of finanelal posttion.

CWT ls recognized as assets in the period steh exéess income tax payments become available od tax
eredits 16 the Groap and carried over 1o the extent that it is probable that the benefit will fiow to the
Group, These are derecognized when there is o legally enfureenble Tight, as preseribed by the
apphicible laws, 1o apply the recognized amounts against the related neome tax due.

20,17 Accounts payable and other current lishilities

Accounts payable and other current linbilities are recognived in the period in which the related money,
gonds or secvices are received or whien o legatly enforceable cliim against the Groug is estublished.
Thieae are recognized initinlly ot fair value and subsequently measured st amortized capt asmg eifective
intesest method. Accounts pavable and otlier current linkbilities are classified as current Habilition if
poyment is due within 1w months or less (or in the ndromal operatimg cyele of the business, (T longer?,

If not, theae nre presented as non-current Habilities. '

Aveounts payobies and dther ctirrent Habilities dre medzured at the sriginal mveice gmount (a3 the
effect of discounting is immaterial), The releviint policies on clussification, recognition, messurement
and derecognition are described o Note 0o.5, Paahles togovermment agoncies anid adyvance rentals
are not ponsidered financial labilities bot are dereeognized similaely.

20.18 Earnings per share
(@) Bosic
Basie earnings per share is caleulated by dividing net income attributuble 1o equity holders of the

Parent Compatiy by the weighted sverage number of shares ontstanding duting the year, excluding
eommon shares purchased by and held as reasury shares.
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(b)) Diluted

Difuted earnings per share is ealoulated by djusting the welghted averupe number of shares
pitstanding 10 assume conversion of all dilutlye patential ctmimon shares, A= at report date, the
Parent Company hag nodilutive potentinl common shares.

20,19  Dpernting segments.

The Group's operating businesses are organized and manpged separately socording to the nature of the
products and services provided, with seimient ropresenting o strotepis bosimess onit that offers
different products and serves different markets. Financial information oo business segments is
presented in Neate 16.

2020 Provisions

Provisions, if nny, are recognized when the Group hag o present obligition (Jegal or constrictive) as n
restlt of o past event, it s probable thut an putfiow of resources embodying economie benefits will be
reguiired to-setile the chligation and a rellable estimate can be made I:Ifﬂ:t amiount of the abligation.
If the efféct of the time vulue of money 1s materisl, provisions are discounted using a current pre-fas
raie thal refloets, where appropriate, the visks specific to the lability, Whene discotinting is usod, the
loncrense (o the prosision due to the passage of time {s recognized a5 an interest sxprense.

a9 Euangl_:nd.'l:I

Continpert lHabilities are not recognized in the conselidated financial siatements but are disclosed in
the notes unless the pessibility of an outflow of resources embodving economic benefits s remoty.
Contingent nasets are not recognized in the conselidated financial statements but are diselosed In the
notes when inflows of economic benefits are probable. If it beeomes virtsally certain that an inflow of
eeonomic benefits will arise, the ssset and the related income ary rtmg.uimi in the consolideped
financial statements.

20,22 Events after the financial reporting date

Post venr-gnd events that provide additional information abeot the Group's position at the end of the
reporting dste {adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated finansial stuternents, Pogt vear-¢nd
events that are not adjusting events are digcloscd in the notes (o the mumlldaml financlal statements
when matertal.

20.23 Reclassification

Certain agcoumts in 016 and 2015 have been reclassified on the consolidutad financial statenents to
conform 1o thi: current vear presentation. Othor income, which consists of divector's fees ond others
amounting to Peoo,000 and Pb.163, respectively, in 2016 and P24b,000 and P317,567, respertively, in
2015, has beon presented as part of revenue and Ineome in consolidated statement of 1otal
comprehenglye income, The reclassification did not have any impact on previossly reported financial
pusiton, retained sarmnes, and el eomel
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Keppel Philippines Holdings, Ine. and Subsidiaries

Schedule of Philippine Finnncial Reporting Standards and Interpretations

Effpotrve a8 ot Decembior 31, 2007

The following table summariees the ¢ffective standards and interpretations as at Deeember 31, 2017

Adophed

Not
Adopted

Mot
Applicable

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements

Conceptual Framework Phase A Objectives and guatitalive
charactéerisiics

PFRSs Practice Statement Mansgement Commentary

Philippine Financial Réporting Standards

PFRS5 1
[Rovised)

Firgi-tims Adoption of Philipping Finangial Reparting
Standards

Amendmentz 10 PFRS 1 anc PAS 27 Coat of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jeintly Controdled Entity or
Aganciale

Amandments o FFRS 1. Addilidne: Exsmptions. far
Firat-hime Agoplers

Armendmeni to PFFRS 11 Limted Exempbon from
Compatative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adaplars

Amendments 1o PFRS 1: Severe Hypennliahon ano
Removal of Fixed Date for First-fima Adoplgrs

Amendments 1o PFRS 1 Govemmen] Loans

PFRS 2

Sharg-based Paymant

Amendmants o PERS 21 Vesting Condlions and
'I:‘.ar:.u_rsllaharnn

Amendments o PFRS 2 Group Cash-setiea Share-
basad Payment Transaclons

Amendments 1o PFRS 2 Messurement of Cash-settled
Shars-based Payment Transactions®

PFRS 3
(Revised)

Business CombEnations

PFRS 4

Imgurancs Conirects

Amendments 1o PAS 38 and PFRS 4. Financiat!
Gugraniee Contracis

Amendments o PFRS & implementation af
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Mot Not
Adopted | Adopted |Applicable

PFRE8 2

PFRS S

Mon-current Assets Held for Sale.ang Disconbnued
Oparstions

PFR3 6

Exploration for and Evaiuation of Mineral Resoulces

PFRS 7

Financial Instrumeants Chsclosures

Amangmenie o FAS 32 and PFES T Recaasrifcation
of Finantial As5els

Amenomeants to PAS 38 and PFRE 7 Recassification
af Flrancial Asssts - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments o PFRE 7 Imorowving Disclesures about
Financial Instiumeaniz

Amendments o PFRS 7 Disclosuras:- Tremsfams-of
Finarecal Azzals

Amendments to PFRS 7 Disclosures - Oftsetting
Financizl Assels and Fmapaal Liabilfies

Amendments fn PFFRS 7' Transition Dreciosures®

Amendments to PFRS T Disciosunes - Hedge
Scaunting”

PFRS B

Oparating Ssgments

PFRS 2

Finahoial Instruments*

Mot early adopted

Amengments o PFFRS 3 Transtion Disclssures®

Not early adopted

PFRS 10

Cofsalidatsd Finascial Slatements

Amendmenis o PFFRS 10, PFES 12 and PAS 28
Application of the Consolidation Excepbon for
Invesalmsant Entitiza

Amendments 1o PFRES 10and PAS 20 Sais or
Contfibution of Assets bebwean an Imeestor and iis
Associsle of Joint Venlume®

PFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 11 Acquistion of an Intares! ina
Jairt Operation

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interesis in Other Enfifies

Amandmenis 1o FFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 25
Applcation of the Congalidation Excaption for
Investmeant Entifias

PFRS 13

Feir WValue Measuremant

PFRS 14

Ragulatcry Deferral AcCounts




Mot
Adopted | Adopted

Mot

Applicable

PFRS 15 Revenus from Conlracts with Cusiomers™ Mot early sdopted
Amerdment 19 PFRS 15 Igenifying Farfermance
Cotigatons, Licenaes of Intellectual Prapearty, and
Frincipal versws Agent Assessmant® Mot early sdopiad
PFRS 16 Lagesg” Mol early §dophed
PFRS 17 Ifsuranos caniracts” o
Philippine Accounting Standarde
FAS 1 Pragentallan of Financial Statements o
(Revined] Amendmant 1o PAS 1 Caplial Disciosures .
Amangments to PAS 32 and PAS 1. Puftabla Financial
Instrumants and Obiigstions Arising an Liquidation ¥
Amendments 1o PAS 1 Presentation of lems of Cthier
Comprahenans Income "’
Amendments ta PAS 1. Disglosure Intjabve i,
PAS 2 Inveniories f'
PAS T Statament of Cash Flows 3
amendments to PAS 7/ Cisciosure Inthative o
PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Aotounting Estimates: _
ard Efrors .
PAS 10 Evants after the Reporting Patiod v
PAS 11 Construshon Conlraals ¥
FAS 12 Ingome Taxes
Amerdrmen! o PRS 16 - Defered Taw: Recovany aof
Underlying Assute d
Amendments 10 PAS 12: Recognition of Deterrad Tax
Asaats for Unroalized Losses 4
PAS 16 Proparty, Plant and Equipment o
ameandments to PAS 18 and PAS 28 Accepiable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortizatian v
Amandmeants to PAS 18 and PAS 41 Bearer Plants o
PAS 1T Leases 4
PAS 18 Revanus ¥
PAS 18 Employes Banefits 3
(Rovised)

Amendiments to PAS 18 Confributions from Employass
or Third Partas

3




Not Not
Adopted | Adopled | Applicable
PAS 20 Agcounting for Govemment Grants and Disalosure of
Govemment Assisiance
PAS 21 Tre Effeats of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Amendment to PAS 21 Matl Invastment ina Foregn
OCperation "
PAS 23 Borrowing Costs
{Revised) ’
PAS 24 Retated Parly Disclogures
(Revised) =
FAS 26 Accounting and Reparling by Rebmemeni Benefit Plans. *
P&S 2T Separale Financiai Satements
(Revised) I dments to FAS 27 Usa of Equity Methad in
Separate Financial Statements ’
PAE'_IE investments in Assooales and Jont Venluwes
[Revised)  [amendments of PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28,
Application of the Consolidation Exception for
Irvasimeant Enfilies ’ ol
Amendmaents 1o PFRS 10 and PAS 28 Sale or
Conrtnoutions: of Asseis betwesen an Investor gnd-its
Agsociate or Joint Vensture™
PAS 29 Fimancial Haparting in Hyperinfiationary Econamiss 4
PAS 32 Financlal Instruments: Presentalion ’
Amandmanis 1o PAS 32 and FAS 1° Pultasia Financisl
Instrurments ang Okligations Arging on Liguidation
Amendment to PAS 32 Classification of Rights |ssues
Amenaments o PAS 32 Ofsetling Finanos) Assels _
and Finangial Lakilitss v
PAS 33 Eamings per Share -
PAS 34 Interim Fmancial Reporbng
PAS 36 Impairment of Assels 4
Amerdment to PAS 38 Reacoveratile Amount
Disclosures T
PAS 3T Provissons, Contingént Liabiies and Confingent Aesals v
PAS 38 Intangithe Assats ;
Amandments to PAS 18 and PAS 38, Acoepiabls
Methods of Depreciation and Amariizeion
PAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurament a

(4]




Adopled

Not
Adopled

Mot
Applicable

Ameangmants to PAS 30: Transition and Intial
Rocognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liablitiss

Amangmants to PAS 38 Cash Flow Hedge Ascountng
of Forecast Infragroup Tranzadlions

Amandments-de FAS 38 The FairValug Oplion

Amandments o PAS 38 and PERS 4 Financhsl
Guaraniae Contracts

Amandments o FAS 39 Eligible Hedged [lams

Armandmants to FAS 30 and PFRE T Reclagsification
af Financinl Assels

Amanpmants to PAS 28and PFRS 7. Reclaasficaton
of Finangial Assats - Effective Dale and Transitipn

Aemancmants (o FRIC S and PAS 30 Embadoed
Derivatives

Amengmants to PAS 38, Novation of Dervatives

Amengments to PAS 30! Hedge Accounting

PAS 40

Investmant Property

Amendgmaent o PAS 40 Trangders of Inkestmeant
Fropety”®

PAS 41

Agricultura

Amandgmants to FAS 18 and PAS 41 Bearer Pranie

Philippine Interpretations

IFRIC 1

Changas in Exiafing Decommissioning, Restoration and
Simitar Lisbilites

IFRIC 2

Membars Shara in-Co-operative Entities ang Similar
(A IENTE =Tl Y

IFRIC 4

Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a
Leass

IFRIC &

Rights to Interesis ansing from Decommissioning,
Restorstion and Environmental Rehabiliation Funds

IFRIC &

Lisbjlites arming from Partioipating in 5 Specific Marke!
- 'u'u'me.{ln Elactrical and Elaotronic Equipmant

IFRIC T

Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 26
Financisl Reparfing in Hyperinflationary Economias

{FRIC 10

Irtanm Firancial Raporing and Impairmant

IFRIC 12

Service Concession Arrangements




Not Mot
Adopted | Adapted | Applicable

IFRIC 12 Customes Layalty Programmes ’
IFRIC 14 The Limit on 2 Defined Benafit Asset Minimum Funding “

Requiremenits and their interaction

Amandments to IFRIC 14: Prepaymeants of a Minimum

Fundmg Reguirement o
IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate® «
IFRIC 18 Hedges of a Nel Investment i a-Foreign Operafian ’
IFRIC AT CHeiributions of Non-cash Adsels o Owners +
IFRIG 1B Transfers of Assets from Cusfomers -
IFRIC 18 Exunguishing Finansal Liatmites with Eguity

Ingtrumants ¥
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phasze of a Surface

Mine "
IFRIC 21 Levies’ #
IFRIC 22 Foralgn Curfensy Transashions gnd Advance

Congideration® <
IFRIC 23 Uneertamty over Incorme Tax Treatmants® -
SiC-T Introduction of tha Eura L
BIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation o

Cparating Activities ¥
S1C-15 Operating Leases - Incantives o
8iC-28 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Statue of sp Entity

or its: Sharefciders o
SIC-2T Evalualing the Substanice of Transactions Involving the

Legsl Form of 2 Leass v
S5iC-28 Service Concession ﬁ.nﬂamunm' Disslosuras: o
SIC-31 Revenue - Baster Transactions Invaiving Advertsing

Services =
SiC-32 intangibie Assats - Web Site Costa -

The standurdi, amendments and interpretations morked with an asterisk (*) Bave hoen issned but pre not
ver effective for Devember 51, 2017 Ananclal statempents.

The standards, amendments and interpretations that are Jabeled s “Not Appticabile” are already effeetive as
1 Dieceinber 91, 2o17 bat will never be relevant applicible to the Group ar are corrently not relevant to the
Group heonuse 1 has currently po related transsetions,

(&)




Keppel Philippines Holdings, Ine. and Subsidinries

Map of the Group of Compinies within which the Reporting Entity Belongs
As ot December 34, 2007

KEPWEALTH, INC. KEFPEL CORPORATICN LIMITED PUBLIC

22.8% .29 1 8%

KEPPEL PHILIPPINES HOLDINGS INC

tuﬂ% 51%

¥

% ETRTERELTY GOODWEALTH
KPS| PROPERTY, INC. REALTY &
DEVELOPMENT INC

100 %

GOODSOIL MARINE
REALTY. INE.

25%,

L

CONSORT LAND, INC.




Keppel Philippines Holdings, Ine. and Subsidiaries

Key Financlal Ratios
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016
(With comparative figures ad at December 31, 2015)

2017 2016 2015
Current and Liguiddy Ratios:
1 Currant ratio _ _
(Current assats/Curment iabilites) 31m 5222 ar.o1
2 Acia tes! rats ar Qukck raka
(Manetary current asseta/Cutrent liabilifies) 3083 5220 dsm2
Solyency ratia |
iNet income-+ depreciation)Total llablities 4497 280 375
Dedl I sguity rabo
{Tatal kemvinesiShasehoiders’ aguity) o.01 G.09 0,01
. Aseatfo eguity ratio 1M LM 10
Delx ratio
| Total fisbilitea Total assets) .01 a0 0.0
Interiesl covernge rallo
(EBIT/Intzrest expanse) - :
Profitabilty ratios
1 Refuirm on asssts- (o) 540 .31 .62
{Mel ircomafTolal sssele)
2 Return on agulty (%) 528 233 284

(Nat income!Shareholdars’ eguity)
Earmings per snare sivinwabs o equity holders of parent (P)
2017 ard 2018 -&57, 803,418 shsrag BTp .24 -
2015 - 80 387 410 shares - - 422




Schedule A - Financial Assets
Ad at December 33, am7
(ANl armounts in Philipplie Peso)

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Ine, and Subsidiaries

MNumbes of Amount
shafes of  shown intho:  Valus baied
| Conschdated Dot Fripiriet
ameuntol  Stafemantol  gquotstions at oo
Hame of insbing-anity and dewcription of bends and Firancial “glolamert  recaived and
Each IsulE neles Poaition date BoonieEd
Ayailatzhe for rake financinl-pessis®
Wich:WiEok Giolf and Country Chub. Inc. ) 1 00060 20,000,000 -
Universal Rightfietd Proparty Holdinge. Ins 4,400,000 1 1 -
20.000.001 20,000,001 _ -
Cash and cash squivaiants* AT 483 628 AT 483 620 BE3 &F5
_Recoivatijos** - p47230092° 24T 332000 11,543 752
) 354,720 822 354 T2H B2 12 408 257
* See Note 5 to the Consulideted Finaneial Statements,
** Sep Mote 2 4o (he Copsalidated Financial Statemeonis,

=44 Lo Note 4 1o the Consolidated Finsnsial Statements.
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Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc, and Subsidiaries

Sehedole D « Intungible Assets - Other Asseis
December 1, 2017
(ATl amounts in Philipplne Peso)

Cthet
_ Charped o Chergedio changes
Beginning - Additions  cosl and elher mdditons Ending
Dlescrplion tialafon 81 CU8 EXpENsEsS . BOCOUNDS (deductions) balance

Not spplicable




Keppel Philippines Holdings, Ine. ond Subsidiaries

Schedule E - Long-Term Dabt
As ot December 31, 2017
(All ambunts in Philipping Pesin)

Amounl ahosn
under caption Amount shown
‘Current portion of ignder caplion

_ long-arm dedl” in - "Long-iarm dest” in
Amdur autherized rekated balance relzind balance
Titke of issun and tyoa of chligation by indedturs shi=al shmet"

Mot applicable




Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule F - Indebtedness to Reloted Parties
As nt December 31, 2017
(Al smounts m Philippine Pesa)

Name of affiiaps Beginring balance Ending batance
Kegpal Philminni Manre, nc, (agvance ransl) ' 232 068 232 058
Keppal Philippinés Manns, Inc (security deposil) 232 054 232.956

A56 012 455112

Sez Moles 7 and 16 10 the Consalidated Finanelal Statenments.




Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiarics

Schedule G - Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
As at December 31, 2007
(Al amounts in Philippine Peso)

Title of lssu@ of e i

. ue oy
Mame of isguing entity of securitias sach clnss of Total amount far which

-guarantesd by fhi compsny forwhich -sBcurities  guarantsed and- statement Maturs af
slatamant is ied guprardsed outEtending A filed guaranics

Not applicable




Keppel Philippines Holdings, Ine, and Subsidiaries

Schedule H - Share Capital
As ot Decembér 31, 2017
(All amannts in Philippine Poso)

Mumber of _
friie Numoar of shares Held by
resdved for
aplens,
Mumber of WHITEND,
Murnbar of phnres | SoRversions, Hrectors,
shares | wsued and and ather afficare. &od |
Tille of Istue | suthorizes | nutstanding ighis | Attlates | emplogoss | Ciners
fasued sfares:
Common class “A" 90,000,000 30,440,070 - -
Common class "B -2400/000.000 33,332 630 - - -
Tatal 90000000  7at7ak - = .
l.EEE fréagury shares
Comman class A SETA 000 - - . .
Common cass “E SO B - 0. - - -
Total - 15370081 - - -
Dutslanding sharos: )
Common ciass *A" 36,168,970 - 2B817.182 41 TMETeT
Coammaon ciass "B = 41,6835 448 18,604 835 3 3026811
Tolad = BT A0S AE - AT 4EY.01T 44 10,376 358

Bee Notes 13 and 12 1o the Consolidated Finsneial Statements,




Keppel Philippines Holdings, Ine.

Reconoilintion of Retained Earuings for Dividend Declaration
Ax ut December 31, 2017
(Al emicunts in Philippine Pesal

Urappropnaied Retained Eamings. besed on sudiad
finaneial statemants, beginning

Less  Cumubative fair value adiustren

BB 247208

Unapproprialed Retsned Earmings, adjusted
Acd.  Netincome actually sarnedireslized during the periad BG.555. 309
Less’ Nnn—a:h;:lfunfﬂ_ﬁlrza-d income net of lax

Equity m net income of associatel|oint venture

_Unrealized foreign exchangs gain (except thoss attributable to
cash and cash eoulvalants)

Unrealized sctuariai gain

Fair valug sthusiment

Fair value adjustmant of investmant propartdy resilting to gain
Adjustment due t deviation fiom PFRSIGAAR - gain

Other unrealized gains or adjustmenta to the retained eamings
pa @ roesul of certain treneachone acoaunted for under PFRS

BB a47 000

Sub-totad 89,555 302

186,003,358

Add  Mon aciuallosses
Deprecignon on revakuanan in revaiuation incremant (afier lax)
Adiustment due o devizion from PFRS/GAAP - loss
l.oss an fair value adjustment of investment property (afler tax)

Net income actually eamed during the pered

166,003,368

Add (Lass)
Owvidand decisrafions durrdg he yesr (5,7BD,342)
Approprations of stained sarnings durmg the yes
Reversats of appropriahons
Effects of prior penod adjusimants.
Treazury shares :?LEE_'E a78)
Accumiiated share in income of an assoclate

{28 403,318)

157,600,080




